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2. CHAIRMAN REVIEW

It is with great pride that | share the Annual Report for the financial year ending 31 December 2024,
capturing the consolidated and standalone achievements of Waves Corporation Limited.

The Board of Directors continues to play a pivotal role in shaping the Company’s strategic direction
and ensuring robust governance. Our unwavering focus remains on long-term value creation and
safeguarding stakeholder interests. The composition of the Board reflects a balanced and versatile
leadership structure, featuring seven members with a blend of executive, non-executive, and
independent directors, including a female independent director, bringing a wealth of knowledge in
business, finance, regulation, and the financial sector.

Our commitment to strong corporate governance practices is deeply ingrained. This year, we
adhered to a well-defined framework for Board operations, including structured evaluations,
elections, and appointments, to promote consistency, transparency, and leadership excellence.
WAVES continues to operate in full alignment with all regulatory and governance standards.

In 2024, the Board remained actively involved in key decision-making processes ranging from
financial oversight and budget approvals to capital planning and strategic execution. We provided
clear direction and supported the management in responding to uncertainties while exploring new
avenues for sustainable growth.

Despite a turbulent global economic environment, WAVES has continued to demonstrate resilience
and stability by embracing prudent financial practices, transparent operations, and flexible strategic
planning. These core principles form the foundation of our corporate philosophy and will guide us
as we navigate future opportunities and challenges.

I would like to express my heartfelt appreciation to my fellow Board members for their invaluable

contributions, dedication, and leadership throughout the year. Their guidance has been essential
in propelling WAVES forward and laying the groundwork for continued success.

Chairman
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3. DIRECTORS’ REPORT

3.1 Operating Results

We are pleased to present Annual Report of Waves Corporation Limited, formerly Waves Singer
Pakistan Limited (WAVES or the Company) for the year ended December 31, 2024 (Consolidated
and Standalone), together with the Auditors’ Report and other Reports thereon. By the grace of
Almighty, the demand for WAVES branded products remains healthy, driven by our commitment to
delivering high-quality, market oriented and innovative products.

In recent years, Pakistan's economy faced significant headwinds, with soaring inflation and
persistent fiscal deficits straining growth. Industrial output struggled, particularly in large-scale
manufacturing, while external imbalances and dwindling foreign reserves added pressure. The
government responded with tight monetary policies and fiscal adjustments, setting the stage for
stabilization. However, agricultural performance remained inconsistent, and reliance on imports
exposed structural vulnerabilities in key sectors.

Recent months have brought encouraging improvements, with inflation dropping sharply due to
easing food and energy prices. Fiscal discipline has started yielding results, narrowing the deficit
and generating a primary surplus. The external sector has strengthened, supported by robust
remittance inflows, rising foreign investment, and a rebound in exports. Agriculture is showing
progress, aided by government initiatives and increased mechanization, while industries like
automobiles and cement report growth. The stock market remains upbeat, and foreign exchange
reserves have stabilized, reflecting renewed investor confidence.

Due to the technology-intensive nature of home appliance manufacturing, domestic companies are
required to either make significant investments in research and development and technical
capabilities or form strategic partnerships with global entrants. To align itself with the global value
chain, the Group has undertaken a corporate restructuring, now focusing exclusively on the
production and sale of household appliances under the WAVES brand.

Waves Home Appliances has placed a strong emphasis on digital transformation, recently
migrating to SAP B1 to improve data transparency and enhance operational efficiency. The
company holds various ISO certifications that underscore its commitment to product quality,
workplace safety, environmental sustainability, and international compliance standards. As a
certified green-rated supplier under The Coca-Cola Company’s Supplier Guiding Principles (SGP),
Waves Home Appliances is recognized for maintaining high ethical and operational benchmarks.
The company continues to invest in workforce development through ongoing training initiatives,
with future plans to modernize and expand its manufacturing capabilities.

Waves Marketplace boasts an extensive retail network capable of accommodating a diverse range
of products and reaching consumers in even the most remote areas. This network represents
significant sales potential. With strategically located home appliance retail outlets across key
metropolitan areas, the company is well-positioned to strengthen its market presence and serve a
broad customer demographic.

These urban store locations allow the company to effectively engage with a wide range of
customers seeking reliable home appliances. This broad retail footprint not only increases brand
exposure but also enables access to the spending power of urban consumers. In addition, the
network's reach extends into suburban and rural regions, further enhancing market penetration.
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The widespread presence of these stores presents a valuable opportunity to establish the brand
as the preferred choice for home appliances, supporting continued sales growth and reinforcing its
leadership position in the industry.

Separately, the Group’s real estate development is situated at a highly strategic location near
central Lahore, benefitting from one of the highest traffic flows in the area. Surrounded by a growing
and densely populated neighborhood, the project faces no comparable developments in its
immediate vicinity. As economic and financial conditions stabilize and improve, this high-potential
project is expected to attract substantial benefits for the Company. With signs of recovery emerging
in the real estate sector, and a more favorable legal and tax environment taking shape, new
investment opportunities in property development are anticipated to re-emerge

The Company’s business model demonstrated resilience, supported by timely strategic decisions
in the face of ongoing economic and financial challenges. However, its wholly owned subsidiary,
Waves Marketplace Limited (WAVES Plus), continued to encounter difficulties due to the broader
economic environment. Meanwhile, the real estate development model—enhanced to include a
significant commercial component to boost both revenue and profitability—progressed at a slow
pace.

To optimize operational efficiency and reduce additional corporate and regulatory expenses while
the real estate project remains in its early, incubation stage, the Board approved the merger of the
real estate special purpose vehicle, Waves Builders & Developers (Private) Limited, with and into
WAVES.

The home appliances business, operated by the subsidiary Waves Home Appliances Limited
(WAVESAPP), also faced industry-wide pressures, including limited access to financing, restrictive
import policies, elevated interest rates, and rising inflation. Despite these headwinds, WAVESAPP
strategically shifted toward greater reliance on locally sourced materials, setting itself apart from
competitors and mitigating supply chain risks. The construction of its state-of-the-art, purpose-built,
owned manufacturing facility continues, albeit at a controlled pace aligned with prevailing economic
conditions.

Given the ongoing economic difficulties, the Board of WAVESAPP requested an extension on the
repayment period of the outstanding balance owed to the holding company. This liability was
created under the Scheme of Demerger between WAVES and WAVESAPP, as sanctioned by the
Honorable Lahore High Court. The shareholders during the year extended the repayment of the
loan for a period of 2 years extendable to another 1 year after that. This will provide WAVESAPP
room to utilize the available cash and focus on its operations. The Auditors have placed an
Emphasis paragraph in respect of the tax related matters/transactions, which are mainly due the
challenges faced with the relevant tax authorities. However, the management in consultation with
the legal and financial advisor is fully geared to address and resolve the matter.

The Company’s Consolidated Revenues are PKR 5,072 million with net profit of PKR 1,085 million
as compared to previous years of PKR 6,295 million, whereas net profit of PKR 256 million. The
substantial increase in net profit is on account of other income comprising mainly of fair value on
land and income arising due to discounting of financial liabilities. It is commendable that this was
still achieved in a challenging business environment where all macro indicators had been lower as
compared to previous years. Continued improvement in knowledge management, operational
management, cost rationalization, process re-engineering and strategical measures taken during
the whole year etc., helped the Company in its sustenance. Further analysis is given separately in
this Annual Report.
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The challenge posed by the economic slowdown is gradually easing, as coordinated efforts to
stimulate various sectors begin to show tangible results. Notably, the real sector is witnessing
robust growth, contributing to a positive market sentiment and early signs of economic recovery.
The stabilization of the Pakistani Rupee (PKR) and the sustained upward trend of the Pakistan
Stock Exchange (PSX) reflect a conducive environment for economic activity. While the pace of
expansion may remain moderate, encouraging improvements in key economic indicators point
toward a favorable GDP outlook for FY2025.

Looking ahead, we remain optimistic and confident in the Company’s future. Backed by a dedicated
management team, committed staff, a strong brand reputation, a high-quality product portfolio, and
a well-established nationwide distribution and after-sales service network, we are well-equipped to
effectively serve customers across both urban and rural markets. We sincerely thank all our
stakeholders for their continued trust and support.

Financial Highlights

Financial highlights are presented as hereunder for consolidated financial statements, wherein
financial results of standalone financial statements are also provided in this report:

Consolidated Operating Results

FY24 FY23

Rs. in ‘000 Rs. in ‘000

Gross revenue 5,072,833 6,295,795
Net revenues 3,944,757 5,206,326
Gross profit 1,219,295 1,401,187
Operating profit 1,791,734 566,365
Profit before taxation 1,060,737 300,862
Profit after taxation 1,085,676 256,781
Earnings per share 3.86 0.91

Based on the current economic and financial challenges the Board has not recommended any
payout for the shareholders of the Company.

The Board has considered and is providing operating results and business performance for
consolidated financial results as it better reflects the performance of the Company as a holding
entity. The individual standalone operating results of the Company are also given.

Consolidated Operating Performance

During the year the Company’s Consolidated Revenues are PKR 5,072 million with net profit of
PKR 1,085 million as compared to previous years of PKR 6,295 million, whereas net profit of PKR
256 million. The gross profit margin for the current year is 30.9% as compared to 26.9% previous
year. The earning per share for the year is PKR 3.86 as compared to PKR 0.91 of previous year.
With the improvement in the economic conditions coupled with increase in urbanization, lowering
of interest rates and growing metropolitan areas on the back of rural population migrating towards
the cities for employment, better life style we expect results to improve. The profit mainly includes
income as a result of discounting of financial liabilities owing to restructuring efforts of the
management and fair value gain on the investment property. The income arising owing to the
discounting of liabilities will be revered in the coming years as the financial liabilities unwind. For
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more information, please refer to the notes appearing in the financial statements of the
Group/relevant company.

Investments in Subsidiaries

The standalone financial statements of the Company in which investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for on the basis of direct equity interest rather than on the basis of reported results and
net assets of the investees. The Consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared
and presented separately. The Company has investments in the following subsidiary companies
out of which Waves Marketplace Limited and Waves Builders & Developers (Private) Limited are
100% owned subsidiary. For further details on Waves Home Appliances Limited, please visit
www.waves.net.pk.

Standalone Results of the Company

The standalone results of the Company are given hereunder:

FY24 FY23

Rs. in ‘000 Rs. in ‘000

Other Income 1,272,583 321,430
Profit before Tax 56,593 159,571
Profit for the year 81,831 148,186
Earnings per Share 0.22 0.53

During the year the Company has also sold its investment in WAVESAPP in order to generate
funds for operations of the Company. For further details please refer to the audited financial
statements.

Business Overview — Activities and Development

WAVES (the Company) is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX). The
Company recently underwent a corporate restructuring through a Scheme of Arrangement
(the Scheme), under which its home appliances business was demerged and transferred to
Waves Home Appliances Limited, formerly Samin Textiles Limited (WAVESAPP). The
Company retained its real estate development operations and its retail network for consumer
appliances and other goods. The Scheme was approved by the Honorable Lahore High Court,
Lahore on 27 May 2022, with an effective date of 31 August 2021. As a result, WAVESAPP
has become a subsidiary of the Company.

The retail operations are currently managed by Waves Marketplace Limited, while real estate
activities were previously carried out by a dedicated project company, Waves Builders &
Developers (Private) Limited, which is now being merged back into the parent Company.
WAVESAPP primarily focuses on the manufacturing, assembly, and distribution of a wide
range of home appliances and other light engineering products. WAVES has built an
extensive product portfolio, historically sold through a nationwide dealer network as well as
Company-owned retail outlets.

Waves Home Appliances Limited (WAVESAPP)

Waves Home Appliances Limited (formerly Samin Textiles Limited) was incorporated in Pakistan
on 27 November, 1989 as a public limited company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now
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Companies Act, 2017). The registered office of the Company is situated at 9-KM, Multan Road,
Lahore at the same premises where the existing Registered office of the Company exists.
WAVESAPP is currently listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The principal business of the
Company was trading, import and export of appliances and other textile related products.
Consequent to approval of scheme of arrangement, the principal line of business has been
amended to include manufacturing, assembly and wholesale of domestic consumer appliances and
other light engineering products. The appliances’ manufacturing plant is being moved to a new
purpose-built larger factory for which construction speed is slow but is continuing.

WAVESAPP is operating a nationwide set-up of warehouses in cities such as Karachi, Lahore,
Gujranwala, Peshawar, Multan, etc., along with substantial dealers, after-sales service center and
service workshop spread nationwide. The Company’s sales infrastructure is comparable to any
other leading Home Appliance Company operating within Pakistan.

Fy24 FY23"
Rs. in ‘000 Rs. in ‘000
Gross Revenue 4,078,713 5,061,929
Gross Profit 88,077 1,037,052
Profit for the Year 153,287 115,717

Since the manufacturing of home appliances is a technology-intensive business and requires
technical know-how and R&D comparable with that of the global players, local companies must
either heavily invest in developing such R&D and technical teams or alternatively join hands with
one of the global players already looking to enter the country.

The time lag in these two options clearly pushes all the local companies to join hands with the
foreign players or face stiff competition. To position the Company for becoming a part of the network
of the Global Player, WAVESAPP has completed corporate reorganization creating a dedicated
listed company involved solely in the manufacturing and sales of domestic appliances under the
WAVES brand name.

Following the improvements in the economic conditions of the Country, the Company has received
an intention for Strategic Alliance/JV from a foreign global player(s). Accordingly, the Company has
initiated discussion to develop a comprehensive business model that covers among other things,
provision of technical know-how, engineering personnel, use of their brand name by the Company
in domestic as well as in export markets, management sharing structure and the amount of
investment to be brought in. Formal agreement will be signed on finalization of these discussions.

The primary benefits to the Company from this alliance will be access to advanced technology,
expertise and know-how to enhance its product quality, cut down production costs, and implement
technical and operational best practices, along with the ability to procure cheaper materials. This
will give the Company competitive edge in local as well as international markets. The foreign
partner, taking benefit of cheaper labor and freight cost savings from Pakistan will have competitive
edge in Middle Eastern, African and European markets. We shall keep shareholders updated through
PSX updated in respect of the above developments from time to time.

The Company is actively transitioning to local sources of materials to reduce import dependence
and developing certain imported components in-house through vendors. There is significant
potential for corporate sales of deep freezers and vizi-coolers, not only to Coca-Cola but also for
the broader frozen food and beverages industry. Despite ongoing challenges, WAVESAPP remains
fully committed to ensuring operational continuity.

10
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Waves Marketplace Limited (WML)

Waves Marketplace Limited (WML), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has been a
pioneer in the retail sale of home appliances, providing both cash and installment purchase options
to valued customers through a network of over 100 outlets across urban and rural Pakistan. WML
has demonstrated strong growth, and to support its future expansion plans, the Board has, in
principle, approved its potential listing on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) at an
appropriate time when market conditions are favorable.

However, due to prevailing political and economic challenges, preparations for the listing have been
temporarily slowed until investor sentiment improves. Gross revenues have been impacted by
persistently high inflation, elevated interest rates, and overall subdued market conditions.

FY24 FY23

Rs. in ‘000 Rs. in ‘000

Gross Revenue 1,104, 878 1,445,127
Gross Profit 333,217 361,578
Profit before Taxation 40,842 2,779
Profit after Taxation 52,34 111

The management in parallel is also considering alternate options of funds arrangement for growth
by way of securitization of receivables and/or strategic equity investors/partners. With high interest
rates, growing population and high rate of urbanization, the business model of Buy Now Pay Later
(BNPL) has immense growth potential similar to other parts of the developed economies.

However, WAVES Plus will focus on a balance sales mix between Installment Sales and Cash
Sales keeping in view the risk and rewards. Waves network has a potential to grow its sales
multifold on the same network in line with the industry averages.

Waves Builders and Developers (Private) Limited (WBDL)

The Company was incorporated as an SPV by the holding company to undertake the real estate
business. All the project development costs were incurred by the holding company and then were
to be allocated to WBDL once the project is at an execution phase. Since the development of real
estate project is at a slower pace owing to the tough economic and financial challenges, therefore,
the Board decided that WBDL be merged with and into the Company in order to reduce regulatory
and corporate costs.

However, currently it is facing challenge due to unusual and very high costs of merger under the
applicable regulatory regime of Competition Commission of Pakistan and obtaining of No Objection
Certificate from the financial institutions. Hence the Board is reviewing the matter with legal and
financial consultants before proceeding further.

FY24 FY23
Rs. in ‘000 Rs. in ‘000
Operating Loss (329) (479)
Loss for the Year (330) (480)

11
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Scheme of Arrangement

During the FY 22 the honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore sanctioned the Scheme of Arrangement
by and between WAVES and WAVESAPP wherein home appliances business was carved out into
WAVESAPP, while retaining the retail and real estate business. This will provide several benefits
including unique identities of individual companies, more focused business, customer base,
supervision and controlling the business/direction of WAVESAPP, while the management of
WAVESAPP can operate and manage the business of WAVESAPP on a regular day-to-day basis.
Accordingly, 199,724,956 ordinary shares were issued to WAVES by WAVESAPP out of the total
issue of 256,006,196 ordinary shares pursuant to the Scheme, which resulted in becoming
WAVESAPP as a subsidiary of the Company. In addition, as a Settlement Consideration
WAVESAPP also issued 56,281,240 shares of WAVESAPP to the shareholders of WAVES. The
balance of PKR 2 billion cash was to be settled within two (2) years of the sanction of the Scheme.
No profit/mark-up shall accrue on such outstanding amount if the said amounts is settled within two
(2) years of the sanction of the Scheme. The Board has approved the extension of repayment of
PKR 2.0 billion for another period of 2 years. For further details please refer the paragraphs at the
start of the Notes to the Annual Financial Statements. Due to the economic and financial challenges
including persistent high interest rates, the Management is in discussion with the financial
institutions to restructure and optimize the Company’s debt profiles.

In addition, WAVES and WAVESAPP are in the process of completing outstanding formalities post
sanction of Scheme of Arrangement related to the taxation matters as the case may be, since it is
taking sometimes owing to regulatory challenges. The management is moving ahead in an
appropriate and planned manner for the best interest of the Company and its shareholders. It is
envisaged that these formalities shall be completed soon.

Economic and Industry Analysis

Pakistan's economy is showing signs of stabilization, with inflation easing significantly from last
year's peak to single digits, supported by moderating food and energy prices. The fiscal deficit has
narrowed due to improved revenue collection and spending discipline, while the external sector
remains stable with growing remittances and foreign direct investment. However, large-scale
manufacturing presents a mixed picture - while sectors like automobiles, cement and
pharmaceuticals show encouraging growth, others continue to face challenges. The agriculture
sector is benefiting from government support programs, though output remains vulnerable to
climatic conditions.

On the industrial front, automobile production has rebounded strongly, particularly for cars and
commercial vehicles, though tractor manufacturing lags behind. Cement dispatches continue their
upward trajectory, driven by both domestic demand and exports. The textiles sector, a key export
earner, maintains steady growth, supported by competitive pricing and favorable trade terms.
Meanwhile, rising imports of machinery and raw materials suggest expanding industrial activity in
coming months. The State Bank's decision to maintain interest rates reflects cautious optimism
about economic stability, though inflationary pressures in core sectors warrant monitoring.

Looking ahead, Pakistan's economic trajectory will depend on sustaining fiscal reforms, boosting
export competitiveness, and addressing structural bottlenecks in energy and infrastructure. While
recent indicators point to gradual recovery, the economy remains susceptible to global commodity
price fluctuations and domestic political uncertainties. The government's continued focus on
macroeconomic stability and industrial support policies will be crucial for maintaining this positive
momentum.

12
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An International Monetary Fund (IMF) team held discussions with Pakistani authorities between
February 24 and March 14, 2025, in Karachi and Islamabad, followed by virtual sessions. These
talks focused on the first review of Pakistan’s economic reform agenda under the Extended Fund
Facility (EFF) and explored the framework for a new arrangement under the Resilience and
Sustainability Facility (RSF).

At the conclusion of the discussions, it was stated that a staff-level agreement (SLA) had been
reached with the Pakistani authorities concerning the first review of the 37-month Extended
Arrangement under the EFF and on a new 28-month arrangement under the RSF. The total access
under the RSF program would be approximately $1.3 billion (SDR 1 billion), and the SLA would be
subject to the approval of the IMF Executive Board. Upon approval, Pakistan would be eligible to
access around US$1.0 billion (SDR 760 million) under the EFF, increasing total disbursements
under the program to roughly US$2.0 billion.

It was noted that over the previous 18 months, Pakistan had made considerable strides in restoring
macroeconomic stability and boosting investor confidence despite a difficult global environment.
Although economic growth remained moderate, inflation had declined to its lowest level since 2015,
financial conditions had improved, sovereign spreads had narrowed notably, and external balances
had strengthened. Nonetheless, it was acknowledged that downside risks remained elevated.
These risks included the possibility of policy slippages resulting from pressure to relax
macroeconomic policies, as well as external shocks such as fluctuations in commodity prices,
tighter global financial conditions, and increasing protectionism. Climate-related vulnerabilities
were also highlighted as a persistent challenge, emphasizing the need to build resilience through
adaptation efforts.

It was emphasized that maintaining the current reform trajectory was critical to consolidating the
gains achieved during the past year and a half. Further strengthening of public finances, ensuring
price stability, rebuilding foreign exchange buffers, and removing structural distortions were
identified as essential steps toward achieving resilient, inclusive, and sustainable private sector-led
growth.

The Pakistani authorities reiterated their commitment to the EFF-supported reform program and
expressed their intention to reinforce these efforts through reforms under the RSF-supported
initiative, aimed at addressing longstanding structural weaknesses and enhancing resilience to
climate-related shocks

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, inflation is expected to remain under control, though global price fluctuations could
pose risks. Exports and remittances are likely to sustain growth, but industrial recovery hinges on
stronger domestic and international demand. While reforms in tax collection and social spending
are positive steps, external challenges—including trade tensions and slower global growth—
require careful management. If Pakistan maintains its reform momentum and capitalizes on
opportunities in export diversification and foreign investment, the economy could achieve more
stable and inclusive growth in the coming years. After a difficult period, Pakistan’s economy is on
a steadier path, but sustaining progress will depend on sound policies and adaptability to global
shifts

Due to the technology-intensive nature of home appliance manufacturing, domestic companies are

required to either make significant investments in research and development and technical
capabilities or form strategic partnerships with global entrants. To align itself with the global value
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chain, the Group has undertaken a corporate restructuring, now focusing exclusively on the
production and sale of household appliances under the WAVES brand.

Waves Home Appliances has placed a strong emphasis on digital transformation, recently
migrating to SAP Bl to improve data transparency and enhance operational efficiency. The
company holds various I1SO certifications that underscore its commitment to product quality,
workplace safety, environmental sustainability, and international compliance standards. As a
certified green-rated supplier under The Coca-Cola Company’s Supplier Guiding Principles (SGP),
Waves Home Appliances is recognized for maintaining high ethical and operational benchmarks.
The company continues to invest in workforce development through ongoing training initiatives,
with future plans to modernize and expand its manufacturing capabilities.

Waves Marketplace boasts an extensive retail network capable of accommodating a diverse range
of products and reaching consumers in even the most remote areas. This network represents
significant sales potential. With strategically located home appliance retail outlets across key
metropolitan areas, the company is well-positioned to strengthen its market presence and serve a
broad customer demographic.

These urban store locations allow the company to effectively engage with a wide range of
customers seeking reliable home appliances. This broad retail footprint not only increases brand
exposure but also enables access to the spending power of urban consumers. In addition, the
network's reach extends into suburban and rural regions, further enhancing market penetration.
The widespread presence of these stores presents a valuable opportunity to establish the brand -
as the preferred choice for home appliances, supporting continued sales growth and reinforcing its
leadership position in the industry.

Separately, the Group’s real estate development is situated at a highly strategic location near
central Lahore, benefitting from one of the highest traffic flows in the area. Surrounded by a growing
and densely populated neighborhood, the project faces no comparable developments in its
immediate vicinity. As economic and financial conditions stabilize and improve, this high-potential
project is expected to attract substantial benefits for the Company. With signs of recovery emerging
in the real estate sector, and a more favorable legal and tax environment taking shape, new
investment opportunities in property development are anticipated to re-emerge.

RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES AND MITIGATIONS

The Company recognizes that risk is an integral part of business and is committed to managing the
risks proactively and efficiently. The Company periodically assesses risks, in the internal and
external environment and incorporates risk mitigation plans in its strategy and business/operational
plans. Every risk is carefully looked into, as in some of the cases post-analysis it may lead to a new
business opportunity.

The Company has a well-defined risk management framework in place. The risk management
framework works at various levels from top to bottom across the enterprise. These levels form the
strategic defense cover of the Company’s risk management. The Company’s Risk Management
Committee monitors and reviews the risk mitigation plan.

Key Business Risks Mitigants

Operational excellence — These are risks | e Your Company has initiated vendor

associated with internal factors, administrative rationalization, emphasis on in-house

and operational procedures like employee manufacturing and scorecard evaluation of
vendors has been put in place.
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shutdowns or control failures.

turnover, supply chain disruption, IT system

Your Company has put in place a quality and
process improvement program across the
Company, including strategic vendors, during
the year with progress being tracked at regular
Management reviews.

market trends and product innovation.

Branding/Innovation Risk — Risk that applies
to innovative areas of your business such as
product research and to cope up with latest

Your Company has put in place a centralized
marketing structure during the year, thereby
strengthening its consumer insight process
and filling up competency gaps in the
concerned function.

Company’s research and development
department has been strengthened and is
continuously looking into and implementing
product innovation strategies.

Company’s inability to achieve organization’s
goals.

Organization Excellence — Ability to attract and
retain the right talent may lead to your

Your Company has put in place Succession
Planning  framework  mapping  career
development and progression opportunities for
suitable employees and thereby ensuring
talent retention

asset

Liquidity Risk- is the risk that the Company will
encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities.
Due to dynamic nature of the business, the
Company maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining committed credit lines available.
The Company's liquidity management involves
projecting cash flows and considering the level
of liquid assets necessary to meet these,
monitoring statement of financial position
liquidity ratios against internal and external
regulatory requirements and maintaining debt
financing plans

contracted.

Credit Risk- Credit risk represents the risk of a
loss if the counterparties fail to perform as

The risk is mitigated by applying individual
credit limits and by securing the majority of
trade debts against bank guarantees and
inland letter of credit. The credit risk arising on
account of acceptance of these bank
guarantees is managed by ensuring that the
bank guarantees are issued by banks of
reasonably high credit ratings as approved by
the Board of Directors.

might squeeze margins.

Price Risk- with new entrants in the market,
there is a likelihood of price competition which

The Company is constantly sourcing
competitive suppliers, improving its
technology, efficiency and productivity. Also,
since WAVES has in-house capability to
develop products with fast turnaround time,
that by itself obviates possibilities of
competition affecting WAVES.

their way into the plastic industry.

Competitive Risk- Increasing entrants making

WAVES'’s diversified product line and unique
dealer plus retail sale structure and technical
expertise makes it adequately prepared to face
these challenges.
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Regulatory Risk- Imposition/enhancement of | ¢ New levies go across the board, so we stay
duties, taxes, levies and other conditions may competitive
adversely affect the operations.

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH & SAFETY

We are committed to achieve excellence in health, safety, and the environment across our
business. We prioritize the safety of our employees and work hard to provide a positive
environment, good health, and safety culture, particularly at our manufacturing facilities while
vigilantly fulfilling our environmental duties and responsibilities. Our company gives importance to
the occupational safety and health of our workers. We maintain a safe working environment and
takes responsibility for the health and wellbeing of our staff and stakeholders. The Company
actively trains all employees to ensure their safety at both the workplace and beyond. Besides, our
manufacturing, distribution, and retail operations have developed SOPs that seek to reduce the
risk of accidents.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

We believe in collective effort and therefore, have created a strong organizational culture that
extends benefits to all employees and stakeholders. We embrace social responsibility as one of
our core values and it is shared by every member of the group.

Sustainable and responsible development is not only binding by local laws on corporate entities,
but it is more about moral obligation which needs to be followed and practiced with the best spirit.

We strongly believe that improving its environmental and social performance is inevitable for its
financial success. The Company always emphasizes a culture of excellence, good governance,
transparency, integrity, and accountability. WAVES has been consistently running the following
diverse CSR initiatives each fulfilling in achieving our goals towards our CSR vision.

GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT

At WAVES, we are committed to fostering an inclusive and equitable workplace where all
employees regardless of gender are treated with fairness, dignity, and respect. While our current
workforce does not include female employees, their limited representation is primarily due to the
operational nature of our manufacturing environment, which traditionally attracts a predominantly
male workforce, as well as a general lack of female applicants for available roles.

Despite these constraints, the Company upholds a strict non-discrimination policy and provides
equal pay, benefits, and career development opportunities to all employees. We are proud to have
female representation on our Board of Directors, reflecting our broader commitment to gender
diversity in leadership.

Moving forward, the Company will continue to explore avenues to encourage greater female
participation, especially in departments where gender diversity can be further enhanced, and will
ensure that our policies and practices remain aligned with SECP’s vision of inclusive corporate
growth.

INVESTMENT IN HUMAN CAPITAL

At Waves Corporation, we believe in attracting the best talent in the marketplace and giving them
the skills and opportunities, they need to become high-achievers.
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Human Assets

The Company treats its people as its most important asset. We are always on the lookout to recruit,
train and promote the best human resource talent available. Besides attractive remuneration
packages, our corporate culture is designed to boost employee performance. Our succession
planning framework proactively guides our recruitment and promotion activities.

Learning & Organizational Development

Our workforce regularly undergoes training in their respective functional areas. The Singer Retalil
Academy is instrumental in taking the employees through a comprehensive workforce training
calendar. We also conduct workshops to make our employees aware of new developments in the
field to remain abreast of the changing market landscape.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

The internal control framework has been effectively implemented through an in-house Internal Audit
function established by the Board which is independent of the External Audit function. The
Company’s system of internal control is sound in design and has been continually evaluated for
effectiveness and adequacy. The Audit Committee has ensured the achievement of operational,
compliance, risk management, financial reporting and control objectives, safeguarding of the
assets of the Company, and the shareholders’ wealth at all levels within the Company. The Internal
Audit function has carried out its duties under the charter defined by the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee has reviewed material Internal Audit findings, took appropriate action or brought
the matters to the Board'’s attention where required. Coordination between the External and Internal
Auditors was facilitated to ensure efficiency and contribution to the Company’s objectives, including
a reliable financial reporting system and compliance with laws and regulations.

BEST PRACTICS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Our Code of Conduct lists Ethics as one of our core values, therefore Waves Corporation Limited
has a zero-tolerance policy towards any form of discrimination and harassment. Similarly, honesty
and open communication is also expected on the reporting front, we care how we get results. We
believe it is essential for everyone associated with Waves Corporation Limited to embrace this
culture and live by the highest standards of integrity and accountability. The Board of directors
adopted the Code of Conduct for Directors and employees and the same has been circulated to
board members and employees in terms of requirement of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. The code of conduct is also placed on the Company’s
website.

Directors’ Statement

As required by the Code, we, the Directors of the Company, are pleased to state that:

a) The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its
state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows, and changes in equity;

b) Proper books of account have been maintained by the Company;

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of
financial statements;

d) The accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

e) International Accounting Standards (IAS) and IFRS, as applicable in Pakistan, have been
followed in the preparation of financial statements;
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f) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored,;

g) There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern;
and

h) There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as
detailed in the listing regulations except to the extent mentioned in this Annual Report.

Statement of Compliance

The Company adheres to the best practices of governance. The Company has issued a “Statement
of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance” as stipulated in listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019, which has also been reviewed and certified by the
Auditors of the Company.

Meetings and Activities during the Financial Year
During the year, four (4) meetings of the Board of Directors were held, which were presided over

by the Chairman. The Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary also attended the meetings
to the extent required.

Board of Directors

No Name of Director Meetings Attended
1 Mr. Haroon Ahmad Khan CEOQO / Director 4
2 Mr. Moazzam Ahmad Khan Non-Executive Director 4
3 Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan Non-Executive Director 4
4 Mr. Hamza Ahmad Khan Executive Director 4
5 Mr. Tajammal Hussain Bokharee Independent 4
6 Mr. Khalid Azim Non-Executive Director 4
7 Mr. Zafar Hussain Independent 4

Audit Committee

An Audit Committee of the Board has been in existence since the enforcement of the Code of
Corporate Governance. It comprises of three (3) members.

The Chairman is an Independent Director. Other members include two (2) Non-Executive Directors.
Four (4) meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year. Attendance of each Member
is given hereunder: —

. Name of the Director Meetings Attended
1 | Mr. Tajammal Hussain Bokharee Independent Director 4
2 | Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan Non-Executive Director 4
3 | Mr. Moazzam Ahmad Khan Non-Executive Director 4

The Audit Committee has adopted its terms of reference as provided in the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee
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The Human Resource & Remuneration Committee comprises of Four (4) members out of which
one (1) member is independent and there are one (1) Executive Directors and two (2) Non-
Executive Directors. One meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee was held
during the year. Attendance of each Member is given hereunder —

1 Mr. Muhammad Zafar Hussain Chairman/Independent 1
2 Mr. Moazzam Ahmad Khan Non-Executive Director 1
3 Mr. Khalid Azeem Non-Executive Director 1
4 Mr. Haroon Ahmad Khan Executive Director 1

The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee has adopted its terms of reference as
provided in the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Evaluation of the Board’s Performance and Directors’ Training Program

As required under the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, a
formal and effective mechanism is put in place for an annual evaluation of the Board’'s own
performance, members of the Board, and of its committees against pre-determined operational and
strategic goals. Effective boards make sound collective decisions to meet the company’s strategic
objectives and provide oversight and support on key matters to management for optimal operational
performance. A well-conducted evaluation helps the board and its committees to perform to their
maximum capabilities, crucial for the continuing success and growth in the long-term sustainable
value of the Company.

Notice of Annual General Meeting
The notice of Annual General Meeting is also attached to this Report.
Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of Shareholding of the Company as of 31 December 2024, along with a pattern of
shareholding of certain classes of shareholders whose disclosure is required under the reporting
framework as well as the statement of purchase and sale of shares by Directors, executives, and
their spouses including minor children (if any) during financial year 2024 is given in the report.

Election of Directors

The existing Board of Directors comprise of seven (7) Directors including one (1) Female non-
executive Director, two (2) Independent Directors, one of them is Chairman of the Board also, two
(2) non-executive Directors and two (2) executive Directors including Chief Executive Director.
Detailed composition as per the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019, is given in “Statement of Compliance” annexed to the Annual Report. These Directors were
re-appointed during the year.

Directors’ Remuneration

The Board of Directors has duly approved the policy and procedure for remuneration of the
Directors for attendance of Board and Committee meetings in compliance with the requirements of
the Company’s Article of Association, Companies Act, 2017 and the listed companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. The remuneration is determined by the level of
responsibility and expertise, to attract and retain the best talent while ensuring that their
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independence is not compromised in any manner. Its main features include that Independent
Directors are entitled to meeting fees as remuneration for attending meetings of the Board of
Directors and other committees of the Board. Details of the remuneration paid to Directors during
the year is given in relevant Note of the Financial Statements.

Investor Relations & Website

We want our investors, shareholders, and customers to be well informed about us and our
operations so we can continue to build lasting and mutually beneficial relationships. We are
determined to service our Shareholders and Stakeholders by delivering material information as
soon as the same are available for circulation. As a practice, we will regularly publish all material
communiqués on the official website of the company (www.waves.net.pk) such as the Company’s
financial, operational performance, a pattern of shareholding, material disclosures, and any other
information deemed essential for the investors.

Our investor complaint section also covers detail of the person to contact in case of investor
grievances so that your concerns may be duly addressed.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has recommended the reappointment of M/s. Rizwan & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Lahore, an independent member of DFK International, as Statutory Auditors of the
Company for the year ending 31 December 2024, at a fee to be mutually agreed upon. The Board
has endorsed this recommendation.
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We would like to thank all our stakeholders, especially our valued customers, suppliers, business
partners, financial institutions, regulators, who have positioned their trust in us. The Company’s
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commitment, hard work, immense support, and efforts of our management team and other
employees who deserve a full compliment. We are confident that the team will continue to grow
and constantly deliver on the expectations of all stakeholders. The Board would also like to place
its appreciation for the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, State Bank of Pakistan,
and the management of the Pakistan Stock Exchange for their continued support and cooperation.
We would also like to extend our sincerest gratitude to our shareholders for the confidence and
trust they have reposed in us and for their unwavering support.

For and on behalf of the Board:

For and on behalf of the Board:
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Haroon Ahmad Khan Moazzam Ahmad Khan
Chief Executive Officer Director
Lahore
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4. CORPORATE VALUE STATEMENTS

4.1 Corporate Values

Vision & Mission

e To be an innovative company that is driven by
modern ideas, committed to constantly strive for
Vision < surpassing customer expectations in Quality and
Statement Value for Money and to be a leading company
engaged in home appliances and light engineering

_ business in Pakistan.

* To inspire the Customers and Consumer with our
innovative products & designs through R&D,
improve the standard of life by offering high-
quality products and services at affordable prices
and create and reshape the Future.

Mission <
Statement

Core Values

RESPECT &
INNOVATION TEAMWORK

RELIABILITY &
CONSISTENCY

ETHICS &
INTEGRITY

VALUES

& SAFETY, HEALTH
B ENVIRONMENT

EXCELLENCE
& QUALITY
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Code of Conduct

WAVESAPP has committed itself to conduct its business in an honest, ethical and legal manner.
The Company wants to be seen as a role model in the community by its conduct and business
practices. All this depends on the Company’s personnel, as they are the ones who are at the
forefront of Company’s affairs with the outside world.

This statement in general is in accordance with Company goals and principles that must be
interpreted and applied within the framework of laws and customs in which the Company operates.
This code will be obligatory for each director and employee to adhere to. Waves Group endeavors
for implementation of similar code in other companies that it controls.

RESPECT, HONESTY AND INTEGRITY

Directors and employees are expected to exercise honesty, objectivity and due diligence in the
performance of their duties and responsibilities. They are also directed to perform their work with
due professionalism.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS

The Company is committed to comply and take all reasonable actions for compliance with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations of state or local jurisdiction in which the Company conducts
business. Every director and employee, no matter what position he or she holds, is responsible for
ensuring compliance with applicable laws.

FULL AND FAIR DISCLOSURE

Directors and employees are expected to help the Company in making full, fair, accurate, timely
and understandable disclosure, in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, in all reports
and documents that the Company files with, furnishes to or otherwise submits to, any governmental
authorities in the applicable jurisdiction and in all other public communications made by the
Company. Employees or directors who have complaints or concerns regarding accounting,
financial reporting, internal accounting control or auditing matters are expected to report such
complaints or concerns in accordance with the procedures established by the Company’s Board of
Directors.

PREVENT CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Directors and employees, irrespective of their function, grade or standing, must avoid conflict of
interest situations between their direct or indirect (including members of immediate family) personal
interests and the interest of the Company. Employees must notify their direct supervisor of any
actual or potential conflict of interest situation and obtain a written ruling as to their individual case.
In case of directors, such ruling can only be given by the Board and will be disclosed to the
shareholders.

TRADING IN COMPANY SHARES

Trading by directors and employees in the Company shares is possible only in accordance with the
more detailed guidelines issued from time to time by corporate management in accordance with
applicable laws. This also includes shares of the companies that are directly/indirectly controlled
by the Company.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

Directors and employees may become aware of information about Company that has not been
made public. The use of such non-public or “inside” Directors and employees becoming aware of
information which might be price sensitive with respect to the Company’s shares have to make sure
that such information is treated strictly confidential and not disclosed to any colleagues or to third
parties other than on a strict need-to know basis. Potentially price sensitive information pertaining
to shares must be brought promptly to the attention of the Management, who will deliberate on the
need for public disclosure. Only the Management will decide on such disclosure. In case of doubt,
seek contact with the Company Secretary and/or the Chief Financial Officer.

MEDIA RELATIONS AND DISCLOSURES

To protect commercially sensitive information, financial details released to the media should never
exceed the level of detail provided in Quarterly and Annual Reports or official statements issued at
the presentation of these figures. As regards topics such as financial performance, acquisitions,
divestments, joint ventures and major investments, no information should be released to the press
without prior consultation with the Management. Employees should not make statements that might
make third parties capable of “insider trading” on the stock market.

COMPETITION AND FAIR DEALING

The Company seeks to outperform its competition fairly and honestly. Stealing proprietary
information, possessing trade secret information that was obtained without the owner’s consent or
inducing such disclosures by past or present employees of other companies is prohibited. Each
director and employee are expected to deal fairly with Company’s customers, suppliers,
competitors and other employees. No one is to take unfair advantage of anyone through
manipulation, abuse of privileged information or any other unfair practice.

The Company is committed to selling its products and services honestly and will not pursue any
activity that requires to act unlawfully or in violation of this Code. Bribes, kickbacks and other
improper payments shall not be made on behalf of the Company in connection with any of its
businesses. However, tip, gratuity or hospitality may be offered if such act is customary and is not
illegal under applicable law. Any commission payment should be justified by a clear and traceable
service rendered to the Company. The remuneration of agents, distributors and commissioners
cannot exceed normal business rates and practices. All such expenses should be reported and
recorded in the Company’s books of accounts.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

The Company believes in providing equal opportunity to everyone around. The Company laws in
this regard have to be complied with and no discrimination upon race, religion, age, national origin,
gender or disability is acceptable. No harassment or discrimination of any kind will be tolerated,;
directors and employees need to adhere standards with regard to child labor and forced labor.

WORK ENVIRONMENT

All employees are to be treated with respect. The Company is highly committed to providing its
employees and directors with a safe, healthy and open work environment, free from harassment,
intimidation or personal behavior not conducive to a productive work climate. In response the

Company expects consummate employee allegiance to the Company and due diligence in his job.
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The Company also encourages constructive reasonable criticism by the employees of the
management and its policies. Such an atmosphere can only be encouraged in an environment free
from any prospects of retaliation due to the expression of honest opinion.

PROTECT HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY

The Company intends to provide each director and employee with a safe work environment and
comply with all applicable health and safety laws. Employees and directors should avoid violence
and threatening behavior and report to work in fair condition to perform their duties.

RECORD KEEPING

The Company is committed to compliance with all applicable laws and regulations that require the
Company to maintain proper records and accounts which accurately and fairly reflect the
Company’s transactions. It is essential that all transactions be recorded and described truthfully,
timely and accurately on the Company’s books.

No false, artificial or misleading transactions or entries shall be reflected or made in the books or
records of the Company for any reason. Records must always be retained or destroyed according
to the Company’s record retention policies.

PROTECTION OF PRIVACY AND CONFIDENTIALITY

All directors and employees, both during and after their employment, must respect the exclusivity
and trade secrets of the Company, its customers, suppliers and other colleagues and may not
disclose any such information unless the individual or firm owning the information properly
authorizes the release or disclosure.

All the Company’s assets (processes, data, designs, etc.) are considered as certified information
of the Company. Any disclosure will be considered as grounds, not only for termination of
services/employment, but also for criminal prosecution, legal action or other legal remedies
available during or after employment with the Company to recover the damages and losses
sustained.

PROTECTION & PROPER USE OF COMPANY ASSETS / DATA

Each director and employee are expected to be the guardian of the Company’s assets and should
ensure its efficient use. Theft, carelessness and waste have a direct and negative impact on the
Company’s profitability. All the Company assets should be used for legitimate business purposes
only. The use, directly or indirectly, of Company funds for political contributions to any organization
or to any candidate for public office is strictly prohibited. Corporate funds and assets will be utilized
solely for lawful and proper purposes in line with the Company’s objectives.

GIFT RECEIVING

Directors and employees will not accept gifts or favors from existing or potential customers, vendors
or anyone doing or seeking to do business with the Company. However, this does not preclude
giving or receiving gifts or entertainment, which are customary and proper in the circumstances,
provided that no obligation could be or be perceived to be, expected in connection with the gifts or
entertainment.
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COMMUNICATION

All communications, whether internal or external, should be accurate, forthright and where ever
required, confidential. The Company is committed to conduct business in an open and honest
manner and provide open communication channels that encourage candid dialogue relative to
employee concerns.

The Company strongly believes in a clean desk policy and expects its employees to adhere to it
not only for neatness but also security purposes.

EMPLOYEE RETENTION

High quality employee’s attraction and retention is very important. The Company will offer
competitive packages to the deserving candidates. The Company strongly believes in personnel
development and employee training programs are arranged regularly.

INTERNET USE / INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

As a general rule, all Information Technology related resources and facilities are provided only for
internal use and/or business-related matters. Information Technology facilities which have been
provided to employees should never be used for personal gain or profit, should not be misused
during work time and remain the property of the Company.

Disclosure or dissemination of confidential or proprietary information regarding the Company, its
products or its customers outside the official communication structures is strictly prohibited.

COMPLIANCE WITH BUSINESS TRAVEL POLICIES

The safety of employees while on a business trip is of vital importance to the Company. The
Company encourages the traveler and his/her supervisor to exercise good judgment when
determining whether travel to a high-risk area is necessary and is for the Company’s business
purposes.

It is not permitted to combine business trips with a vacation or to take along spouse, relative or
friend without the prior written authorization from Management.

COMPLIANCE

It is the responsibility of each director and employee to comply with this code. Failure to do so will
result in appropriate disciplinary action, including possible warning issuance, suspension and
termination of employment, legal action and reimbursement to the Company for any losses or
damages resulting from such violation.

Compliance also includes the responsibility to promptly report any apparent violation of the

provisions of this code. Any person meeting with difficulties in the application of this code should
refer to the Management.

4.2 Corporate Objectives & Strategies
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Objectives

Strategies

Enhance shareholders’
Returns

To manage business in an efficient manner with a
constant focus on the topline and bottom-line
performance of the Company

Become Price-Competitive

Improve production efficiency through both technological
upgrades and optimal resource utilization

Broaden the Product
Portfolio

Enter into strategic trading relationships with global
brands to improve standing in segments where product
standing is weak

Exceed Customer
Expectations

Invest in customer-centric initiatives to improve
geographical touch-points and after-sales services

Create a Pro-Growth,
Learning Organization

Promote employee training & development and ethical
business

Knowledge Management

Promote tacit and explicit knowledge within the Group to
effectively create, gather, store and re-use knowledge as
an asset for ultimate Group benefits
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5. HISTORY OF WAVES

5.1 Brief History and Holding Company

Waves Home Appliances Limited, formerly Samin Textiles Limited (WAVESAPP or the Company)
is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX). The principal line of business was trading,
import and export of textile products. Consequent to the approval of the Scheme of Arrangement
(the Scheme) by and between the Company and Waves Corporation Limited, formerly Waves
Singer Pakistan Limited (WAVES) home appliances business of WAVES was acquired with effect
from 31 August 2021 by the Company, under the sanction order of the honorable Lahore High
Court, Lahore on 27 May 2022). As per the Scheme the Company shall be a subsidiary company
of WAVES.

Waves Corporation (WAVES or Holding company) history has its legacy from
the Singer’s brand where Singer’s history dates back to 1850, when Isaac
Merritt Singer manufactured the first ever sewing machine in Boston, USA. |. M
Singer & Company was duly incorporated during the same year. The name changed to Singer
Manufacturing Company during 1853 when the factory of the Company was also relocated to New
York, USA. Singer established its presence in the Indian sub-continent during 1877. Over the years,
and after the independence of Pakistan, Singer continued its business of sewing machines in the
country, but also started dealing in domestic consumer appliances, besides manufacturing and
assembling light engineering products. In 1985, Singer became a public listed company. Later with
global restructuring of Singer, the local Singer company was sold out to professional team having
expertise in home appliances and light engineering businesses. Under Singer brand the Holding
company manufactured variety of consumer appliances including refrigerators, air conditioners,
LED TVs, washing machines, microwave ovens, in addition to its more traditional offerings of
sewing machines, water heaters and gas ovens etc. In addition, it had an extensive retail network
in Pakistan that covered mostly small towns and metropolitan cities of the country.

@sincER

Later the Holding company acquired WAVES brand through a merger sanctioned by the honorable
high court, wherein Cool Industries (Private) Limited (owner of Waves brand) and Link Well
(Private) Limited were merged with and into the Company and the name of the Company was
changed from Singer Pakistan Limited to Waves Singer Pakistan Limited. With the growth in
business, the management of Holding Company felt prudent to demerge home appliances business
into a separate entity Waves Home Appliances Limited, formerly Samin Textiles Limited
(WAVESAPP), while retaining the real estate development business and retail shop network for
consumer appliances and other consumer goods.

The Holding company was in discussion with Singer International since year 2021 in respect of
relinquishment of Singer brand. During the first quarter of year 2022, the deal with the Singer
International was not conclusive. Efforts are still in pipeline for re-negotiation of royalty to Singer
International. However, in order to avoid legal complication, the Holding company halted the use of
Singer brand and its related production. Accordingly, the name of the Holding company was also
changed to exclude the word “Singer” from the name of the Company.

WAVES brand of consumer appliances was established by Cool Industries =2

(Private) Limited in 1971 by a family of entrepreneurs from Lahore. Within a WWA\!E;S
span of four decades, the Company became a household brand in the country. The

history of the company is filled with many milestones. Back in 1976, it started the production of
refrigerators. By 2002, the company had become the sole producer of Split Air Conditioners in
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Pakistan. The company started producing Microwaves in 2003, under an agreement with GALANZ,
a Chinese company. The product take-off was impressive, thanks to product durability. The
production of Washing Machines started in 2004, when Waves pioneered single-tub and double-
tub washing machines in this market. The company continued its growth path until 2015, when a
tough competitive landscape and succession issues within the sponsors family created many
bottlenecks in the smooth operations of the company. Subsequently, WAVES was acquired by the
sponsors of Waves Corporation Limited (formerly Waves Singer Pakistan Limited).

The Holding company has two other subsidiary companies i.e., Electronic Marketing Company
Limited which is a pioneer retail of retail sales offering cash and installment sales to our treasured
customers to shop with convenience at our 141 nationwide spread outlets in rural and urban areas
of Pakistan; and Waves Builders and Developers (Private) Limited, which is formed to undertake
real estate projects.

Restructuring of the Company

During the year, effective from 01 September 2021 Waves Home Appliances Limited (WAVESAPP
or the Company) and Waves Corporation Pakistan Limited, formerly Waves Singer Pakistan
Limited (WAVES) completed a Scheme of Arrangement as follows:

1. Carving out / separation of home appliances business from WAVES by transferring certain
assets, liabilities, obligations, contracts and undertakings and amalgamating the same with
and into WAVESAPP as of the effective date 01 September 2021 against allotment and
issue of WAVESAPP shares to WAVES and its shareholders.

2. The Honorable Lahore High Court (the Court) through its Order dated 27 May 2022 which
was issued on 22 June 2022, has approved the Scheme of Arrangement as proposed and
granted sanction order for the carving out of home appliances business from the WAVES
and amalgamation of the same into the subsidiary WAVESAPP.

As consideration for the transfer of the home appliances business, WAVESAPP shall issue a total
of 256,006,196 shares as follows:

1. 199,724,956 shares shall be issued and allotted to WAVES.

2. Remaining 56,281,240 shares of WAVESAPP shall to be issued and allotted to
shareholders of the WAVES in the ratio of 20 shares for every 100 shares of the WAVES.

3. Rs. 2 billion in cash is payable to the WAVES by WAVESAPP; no additional compensation
shall be applicable against this amount if the said amount is settled by the WAVESAPP
within 2 years of sanction of this scheme. However, if the said amount is still wholly or
partially outstanding at the end of 2 years of the sanction of scheme, then a profit/mark-up
shall be payable on outstanding amount on a quarterly basis in arrears at such profit/mark-
up rate as determined by the Board(s) of Directors of each of the Company at the relevant
time, provided such profit/mark-up rate shall not be less than the rate prescribed under
applicable laws

As part of the arrangement hereunder, subsequent to the Scheme completion date, but prior to the
issuance/allotment of WAVESAPP Shares to WAVES and its shareholders, share capital of
WAVESAPP is consolidated from every 225 shares to 100 shares i.e., total paid up capital from
26,728,000 to 11,879,111 shares. The WAVES Group expects several benefits after this scheme
of arrangement including the synergies of operations, allowing them to become leading suppliers /
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service providers, resulting in greater revenue. Furthermore, by separating the business segments
(as contemplated in this Scheme), the individual companies shall have unique identities and a more
focused business and customer base. At the same time, as a consequence of the arrangement,
WAVESAPP has become a subsidiary of the Company and this will allow the management of each
Company to focus on the business segment, resulting in better performance of the same. Further,
this will enable WAVES to oversee, supervise and control the business / direction of WAVESAPP,
while the management of WAVESAPP can operate and manage the business of WAVESAPP on
a regular / day-to-day basis.

The shares have been issued to WAVES and the shareholders of WAVES.

Subsequent to the period end and pursuant to the Scheme, the previous Board of Directors of the
Company resigned and new Board was appointed by the Company which took effective charge on
02 August 2022. The new Board is in the process of reviewing and updating the systems,
procedures and other corporate formalities in the best interest of the Company.

Holding Company

Pursuant to the Scheme, Waves Corporation Limited, formerly Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
(WAVE) has now become a holding company of WAVESAPP. Currently the new shares issuance
pursuant to the Scheme are in process of issuance for which necessary notices of book closures
has already been issued by WAVES.

The registered office of WAVES is located at 9-KM Multan Road, Lahore. The registered office of
the Company is being shifted to the Registered Office of the Holding Company.
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6. WAVES PRODUCTS

6.1 Products

Waves Branded Product Range

2 WAVES
;Gk@i"l:
Deep Freezers

Visi Coolers
Refrigerators

Air Conditioners
Washing Machines
Microwaves
Water Dispensers

Water Heaters

Waves Brand

Instant Geysers

Cooking Ranges
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6.2 Quality Management

Waves standardized manufacturing processes and rigorous quality control management procedures
are followed to achieve consistency in product performance and enhance customer satisfaction. The
Company recognizes the importance of Quality Management System as an integrated function;
combined with Innovation, Research & Development and Information Technology. The Company
complies with the International Standard ISO 9001:2015 accredited by IAF & UKAS.

The Company has developed extensive In-house Quality Checks and Controls to assure complete
risk coverage from the Designing to the Customer usage. The controls encompass the processes of
Design & Development, Material Ordering & Receiving, Initial Material Inspection, Manufacturing
and Product Testing to End User.

6.3 Geographical Presence & Distribution
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7. OTHER INFORMATION

7.1 Pattern of Shareholding

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
Form 20
Section 227(2)(f)
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

1.1 Name of the Company: Waves Corporation Limited
2.1 Pattern of holding of shares held by the shareholders as at: 31 December 2024
------ Shareholdings------

2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
629 1 100 17,924
814 101 500 313,703
789 501 1,000 725,118

1,906 1,001 5,000 5,419,151
733 5,001 10,000 5,938,161
317 10,001 15,000 4,138,248
241 15,001 20,000 4,454,864
144 20,001 25,000 3,413,543
114 25,001 30,000 3,297,641

67 30,001 35,000 2,224,370
68 35,001 40,000 2,616,140
31 40,001 45,000 1,341,640
102 45,001 50,000 5,046,635
34 50,001 55,000 1,791,926
29 55,001 60,000 1,681,547
23 60,001 65,000 1,441,693
16 65,001 70,000 1,075,664
19 70,001 75,000 1,418,400
16 75,001 80,000 1,262,300
6 80,001 85,000 495,750
7 85,001 90,000 621,250
8 90,001 95,000 745,908
52 95,001 100,000 5,178,490
12 100,001 105,000 1,238,641
10 105,001 110,000 1,090,035
3 110,001 115,000 342,800
8 115,001 120,000 942,153
16 120,001 125,000 1,974,088
5 125,001 130,000 638,365
2 130,001 135,000 268,000
7 135,001 140,000 972,591
5 140,001 145,000 706,166
9 145,001 150,000 1,350,000
3 150,001 155,000 456,000
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155,001
160,001
165,001
170,001
175,001
180,001
185,001
190,001
195,001
200,001
205,001
210,001
215,001
220,001
230,001
235,001
240,001
245,001
250,001
255,001
260,001
265,001
280,001
285,001
290,001
295,001
300,001
310,001
320,001
340,001
345,001
360,001
370,001
395,001
400,001
415,001
420,001
425,001
430,001
435,001
440,001
445,001
455,001
480,001
490,001
495,001
505,001
535,001
545,001
560,001

160,000
165,000
170,000
175,000
180,000
185,000
190,000
195,000
200,000
205,000
210,000
215,000
220,000
225,000
235,000
240,000
245,000
250,000
255,000
260,000
265,000
270,000
285,000
290,000
295,000
300,000
305,000
315,000
325,000
345,000
350,000
365,000
375,000
400,000
405,000
420,000
425,000
430,000
435,000
440,000
445,000
450,000
460,000
485,000
495,000
500,000
510,000
540,000
550,000
565,000

628,420
658,500
508,000
175,000
1,073,800
912,802
750,803
193,500
1,795,862
407,068
828,471
212,000
654,000
1,122,500
234,500
475,500
974,754
500,000
250,500
775,460
260,830
539,000
285,000
576,000
292,000
1,498,000
604,497
314,500
324,700
343,917
349,000
365,000
375,000
2,000,000
405,000
415,418
421,000
427,211
433,159
440,000
444,750
1,800,000
459,788
483,343
493,512
500,000
510,000
1,078,327
550,000
562,500
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1 595,001 600,000 595,500
1 610,001 615,000 614,400
1 620,001 625,000 624,000
1 645,001 650,000 647,694
1 650,001 655,000 651,500
1 690,001 695,000 695,000
1 700,001 705,000 705,000
1 715,001 720,000 719,781
1 720,001 725,000 725,000
1 740,001 745,000 743,000
1 770,001 775,000 775,000
1 795,001 800,000 800,000
1 840,001 845,000 841,849
1 915,001 920,000 920,000
1 940,001 945,000 942,471
2 995,001 1,000,000 1,999,803
2 1,000,001 1,005,000 2,005,012
1 1,115,001 1,120,000 1,120,000
1 1,195,001 1,200,000 1,198,500
1 1,240,001 1,245,000 1,241,000
2 1,295,001 1,300,000 2,598,000
1 1,320,001 1,325,000 1,322,500
1 1,345,001 1,350,000 1,350,000
1 1,455,001 1,460,000 1,455,700
1 1,490,001 1,495,000 1,495,000
1 1,465,001 1,470,000 1,570,000
1 1,570,001 1,575,000 1,574,551
1 1,590,001 1,595,000 1,594,438
1 1,710,001 1,715,000 1,711,657
2 1,995,001 2,000,000 4,000,000
1 2,040,001 2,045,000 2,040,801
1 2,475,001 2,480,000 2,478,000
1 2,495,001 2,500,000 2,500,000
1 2,695,001 2,700,000 2,700,000
1 2,845,001 2,850,000 2,850,000
1 2,990,001 2,995,000 2,995,000
1 2,995,001 3,000,000 3,000,000
1 3,255,001 3,260,000 3,258,315
1 3,790,001 3,795,000 3,792,159
1 3,970,001 3,975,000 3,970,409
1 4,005,001 4,010,000 4,009,999
1 4,270,001 4,275,000 4,275,000
1 4,300,001 4,305,000 4,301,000
1 5,660,001 5,665,000 5,660,942
1 5,695,001 5,700,000 5,700,000
1 7,510,001 7,515,000 7,511,024
1 8,010,001 8,015,000 8,015,000
1 39,540,001 39,545,000 39,540,286
1 40,245,001 40,250,000 40,250,000
6,40 281,406,088
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WAVES CORPORATION LIMTIED
Categories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)
As at 31 December 2024

2.3 Categories of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage
2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 117,220,911 40.1648%
and their spouse and minor children
2.3.2 Executives 5,000 0.0017%
2.3.3 Associated Companies, 0 0%
undertakings and related
parties. (Holding Company)
2.3.4 NIT and ICP 52 0.0000%
2.3.5 Banks Development 2,000,000 0.6853%
Financial Institutions, Non
Banking Financial Institutions.
2.3.6 Insurance Companies 1,955 0.0007%
2.3.7 Modarabas and Mutual Funds 1,372,750 0.4704 %
2.3.8 Shareholders holding 10% or more 107,840,286 38.3219%
2.3.9 General Public
a. Local 151,957,286 52.0669 %
b. Foreign 104,000 0.0356 %
2.3.10 Others (to be specified)
- Joint Stock Companies 13,288,458 45532 %
— Others Companies 5,899,677 2.0215 %
Shareholders holding more than 5% of the capital Shares %age
1 Mr. Haroon Ahmad Khan 95,640,286 32.7703 %
2 Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan 17,332,411 5.9388 %
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Categories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)

S. No.
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WAVES CORPORATION LIMTIED

As at 31 December 2024

NAME

Directors, CEO, their Spouse and Minor Children

Mr. Haroon Ahmad Khan
Mr. Moazzam Ahmad Khan
Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan
Mr. Hamza Ahmad Khan

Mr. Tajammal Hussain Bokharee

Mr. Khalid Azeem
Mr. Muhammad Zafar Hussain

Associated Companies
Executives

NIT & ICP

Financial Institutions
Insurance Companies
Pension Funds
Investment Companies
Modaraba and Mutual Funds
Joint Stock Companies
Other Companies
General Public Local
General Public Foreign

Shareholders holding more than 5% of the capital

Mr. Haroon Ahmad Khan
Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan

Total

Shares % AGE

95,640,286 32.7703

1,825 0.0006

17,332,411 5.9388

4,244,134 1.4542

500 0.0002

50 0.0000

1,705 0.0006

Sub-Total 117,220,911 40.1648
0 0.0000

5,000 0.0017

52 0.0000

2,000,000 0.4016

1,955 0.0007

484,500 0.1722

1,372,750 0.4704

13,288,458 4.5532

5,899,677 2.0215
141,513,285 52.0669

104,000 0.0356

Sub-Total 164,185,177 59.8352
Total 281,406,088 100
95,640,286 32.7703

17,332,411 5.9388
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WAVES CORPORATION LIMTIED
All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, CEO, CFO, Company
Secretary and their Spouses and minor children during FY 2024

Designa

tion

Opening

Purchase
[ Gift In

Sale / Gift
Out

Closing

1 Mr. Haroon Ahmad Khan CEO 107,840,286 - | 12,200,000 | 95,640,286
2 Mr. Moazzam Ahmad Khan Director 1,825 - - 1,825
3 Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan Director 28,132,411 | 3,200,000 | 14,000,000 | 17,332,411
4 Mr. Hamza Ahmad Khan Director 244,134 - | 4,000,000 4,244,134
5 Mr. Tajammal Hussain Bokharee Director 500 - - 500
6 Mr. Khalid Azeem Director 50 - - 50
7 Mr. Muhammad Zafar Hussain Director 1,705 - - 1,705
8 Mr. Arslan Shahid CFO 5,000 - - 5,000
9 Mr. Ahmad Bilal Zulfigar CSs - - - -
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8. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR REVIEW REPORT

Independent Auditor’s Review Report
To the members of Waves Corporation Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Waves Corporation Limited (the Company)
for the year ended December 31, 2024 in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility
is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions
of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to
consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion
on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions, with the
requirements of Section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company’s
process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s
length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance
does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the
Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations as reflected in the
paragraph reference where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:

Reference Description
Paragraph
9 As required under clause 19 (1)(i) of the regulations, it is encouraged that by June 30, 2022; all

the directors on their Boards have acquired the prescribed certification under any director
training program offered by institutions, local or foreign, that meet the criteria specified by the
Commission and approved by it. However, out of 7 directors; only 4 have completed their
Training from the approved institutions under Directors Training Program.

-Sd-
Rizwan & Company
] Chartered Accountants
Lahore: 07 April 2025 Engagement Partner: Imran Bashir

UDIN: CR202410140rCPxRHOsI
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9. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

Name of the Company: Waves Corporation Limited
Year ended: 31 December 2024

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The total number of directors are Seven (7) as per the following:

a. Male: Six (6)
b. Female: One (1)

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Number ‘ Name
: N Mr. Muhammad Zafar Hussain
Independent Directors 2 Mr. Tajammal Hussain Bokharee
Non-Executive Directors 2 Mr. Moazzam Ahmad Khan
(Excluding Female Director) Mr. Khalid Azeem
. . Mr. Haroon Ahmad Khan
Executive Director 2

Mr. Hamza Ahmad Khan

Female Director

(Non-Executive Directors) ! Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan

*Best practices of corporate governance entail having an optimal number and mix of Board members with
adequate skills and experience. The current Board of Directors of the Company (7) adequately meets this
requirement. Further, existing independent directors play an effective part within the Board and make valuable
contributions. Therefore, the fraction (2.33) for independent directors has not been rounded up.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies,
including this Company;

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
Company. The Board has ensured that the complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with
their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by
the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with
respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board,;

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with
the Act and these Regulations;

9. Four out of seven directors have already attended the Directors’ Training Program (DTP). The Company is in
the process of arranging formal DTP training for remaining three directors. However, the Directors have been
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

provided with periodic in-house training to apprise them with the changes in laws, rules and regulations along
with their duties and responsibilities etc., to keep them updated.

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal
Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment, and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations;

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of
the Board;

The Board has formed following committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

Mr. Tajammal Hussain Bokharee Member and Chairman
Mr. Moazzam Ahmad Khan Member

Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan Member

Mr. Ahmad Bilal Zulfiqar Secretary

b) HR and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Muhammad Zafar Hussain Member and Chairman
Mr. Khalid Azeem Member

Mr. Moazzam Ahmad Khan Member

Mr. Haroon Ahmad Khan Member

Mr. Ahmad Bilal Zulfigar Secretary

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance;

The frequency of meetings of the committees are as follows:

Name of Committees Frequency of
meetings
Audit Committee Quarterly
HR and Remuneration Committee Yearly

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function that is suitably staffed with qualified and experienced
personnel who are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and registered
with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close
relative (spouses, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the Company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33, and 36 of the regulations have
been complied with; and

Explanations for non-compliance with the requirements other than of the Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33,
and 36 are as follows:
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1. Itis encouraged by the Code that by June 30, 2022; all the directors on their Boards have acquired the
prescribed certification under any director training program offered by institutions, local or foreign, that
meet the criteria specified by the Commission and approved by it. Currently, four out of seven directors
have already attended the Directors’ Training Program (DTP). The Company is in the process of arranging
formal DTP training for the remaining director in this financial year.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Muhammad Zafar Hussain
Lahore 07 April 2025 Chairman
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10. NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the shareholders of Waves
Corporation Limited (WAVES or the Company) will be held on Wednesday, 30 April 2025 at 12:00 p.m.
at the Registered Office, 9-Km Multan Road, Lahore (Waves Factory Premises) physically as well
electronically to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Businesses

1. To confirm the minutes of the last Annual General Meeting held on 29 April 2024.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2024, together with Directors’ Report and Auditor's Reports thereon
As required under section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017 (the “Act”), Financial 1
Statements of the Company have been uploaded on the website of the Company '1-1- I’}
which can be downloaded from the following link and/or QR enabled code:

https://waves.net.pk/financial-reports/ e
El xﬁi

3. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company for the year ending 31 December 2025 and to fix their
remuneration. The Board and Audit Committee have recommended the name of M/s Rizwan and
Company, Chartered Accountants, Lahore (an Independent Member Firm of DFK International)
being the retiring auditors, for re-appointment as Auditors of the Company.

Special Businesses
To consider and if deemed fit pass the following special resolutions with or without modifications:

4. To Ratify/approve the Related Party Transactions during the Financial Year ended 31 December
2024

“Resolved that the transactions carried out by the Company with Waves Home Appliances Limited,
Waves Marketplace Limited, Waves Builders and Developers (Private) Limited and Employees’
Pension/Gratuity/Provident Fund (as the case may be) as the case may be, during the financial year
31 December 2024 as given in the related party note of the Annual Audited Financial Statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024, be and hereby are ratified and approved.”

5. To authorize the Board to approve Related Party Transactions during the Financial Year ended 31
December 2025

“Resolved that the Board of Directors of the Company is authorized to approve all related party
transactions to be carried out on case-to-case basis during the financial year 31 December 2025.
These transactions shall be deemed to be approved by the shareholders and shall be placed before
the shareholders in the next AGM for their formal ratification/approval’

By the order of the Board

Ahmad Bilal Zulfigar 08 April 2025
Company Secretary Lahore

Statement of Material Facts under the Provisions of the Companies Act 2017 (the Act) Pertaining to said
notice is being sent to the members/shareholders along with this Notice of AGM
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Notes:

1. The share transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 24 April 2025 to 30 April 2025
(both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of our Share Registrar Corplink
(Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Model Town, Lahore at the close of business on
23 April 2024 will be treated in time for the purposes of entitlement to the transferees.

2. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting may appoint another Member as his/her Proxy
to attend, speak and vote at the Meeting on his/her behalf. Instrument appointing Proxy must be
deposited at the Head Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the
meeting. Proxy form is available at the Company’s website i.e., www.waves.net.pk However, in case
of electronic attendance, the relevant procedure given in the precedent paragraph may be followed.

3. CDC Accounts Holders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular 1 dated
January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

a. For attending the meeting:

i. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
Regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original Computerized
National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the meeting

ii. Incase of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time
of the meeting.

b. For appointment proxies:

i. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

ii. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC
Numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

ii. Attested copies of CNIC or Passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.
iv. The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original Passport at the time of the meeting.

v. Incase of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the
Company

4. Shareholders are requested to notify the Company's Share Registrar if there is any change in their
registered postal addresses.

5. Procedure for voting on the Special Business Resolutions:

Concerning the special business to be transacted at the AGM, it is hereby notified that pursuant to
the requirements of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018 (the Postal Ballot Regulations),
the members will be allowed to exercise their right to vote in accordance with the conditions
mentioned in the said regulations. Accordingly, the Company shall provide its members with the
following options for voting:

Procedure for E-Voting:

a. Detall of the E-Voting facility will be shared through email with those members of the
Company who have valid cell humbers/e-mail addresses available in the Register of
Members of the Company by the end of business on 23 April 2024 by Corplink (Private)
Limited being the E-Voting service provider.
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b. The identity of the members intending to cast vote through E-Voting shall be authenticated
through electronic signature or authentication for login.

c. Members shall cast vote online from 27 April 2025 starting at 9.00 a.m. till 29 April 2025
ending at 05:00 p.m. The Voting shall close on 29 April 2025 at 05:00 p.m. Once the vote on
the resolution has been casted by a Member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently.

Procedure of Voting through Post
a. Members may alternatively opt for voting through postal ballot. For convenience of the

members, Ballot Paper is annexed to this notice and the same is also available on the
Company’s website (www.waves.net.pk) for download

b. The members must ensure that the duly filled and signed Ballot Paper along with a copy of
the Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) should reach the Chairman of the meeting
through post at the Company’s Registered Office i.e. 9-Km Multan Road, Lahore (Waves
Factory Premises), or email at cs@waves.net.pk, at least two days before the General
Meeting. A postal ballot received after this time shall not be considered for voting. The
signature on the Ballot Paper should match with the signatures on the CNIC.

6. Subject to the requirements of sections 143 and 144 of the Act, where poll is demanded in the
general meeting, the Company shall follow the procedure as laid down in Companies (Postal Ballot)
Regulation, 2018.

7. The shareholders of the Company interested to participate in the general meeting through video link
are requested to send their particulars (as given below) along with a valid copy of their CNIC (both
sides)/passport, attested copy of the board resolution / power of attorney (in case of corporate
shareholders) through email at cs@waves.net.pk (or through post/courier) with the subject similar to
“Registration for AGM April 2025 of WAVES” at least 48 hours before the holding of the general
meeting. The original signed documents are required to be sent to the Company separately through
courier or post, for record purposes.

Name of CNIC No. | Folio No. Cell/lWhatsApp Email Address
Shareholder No.
* Where applicable, please also give the above particulars of proxy-holder or nominee of shareholder

The video link and login credential will be shared with only those members whose emails, containing
all the required particulars are received well within time. This notice of video link shall also cover
providing vide link facility to the members holding 10% or more shareholding (in aggregate) in the
Company, residing at a geographical location.

8. Pursuant to SECP’s Circular No 10 dated 21 May 2014, if the Company receives consent from
members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at a geographical location other
than the city of the Meeting, to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 07 (seven)
days prior to the date of meeting, the Company will arrange video conference facility in that city
subject to availability of such facility in that city. In this regard, please fill the following and submit to
Head Office address of the Company at least 07 (seven) days before the date of general meeting.

I/We of , being member(s) of Waves Corporation Limited holder of Ordinary
share(s) as per Register Folio No. hereby opt for video conference facility at
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

The Company can transmit annual financial statements through email for which shareholders may
provide their relevant information to Share Registrar or the Company Secretary by filling the
Standard Request Form available on the Company’s website. The shareholders can submit their
request for minutes of the previous general meetings at the Registered Office of the Company.

The Annual Audited Financial Statements along with relevant Reports/Reviews shall be available at
the Company’s website at www.waves.net.pk. These accounts are also available for inspection
during office hours at the registered office of the Company.

Shareholders, who for any reason, could not claim their dividends/shares, if any, are advised to
contact our Share Registrar Office i.e. Corplink (Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial,
Model Town, Lahore, to enquire about their unclaimed dividends/shares.

In compliance with the requirements of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing listed
company shall be required to replace his/her physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as
may be specified and from the date notified by the SECP, within a period not exceeding four years
from the commencement of the Companies Act, 2017. Members having physical share certificates
are requested to convert their shares from the physical form into book entry form as early as possible.
It would facilitate the Members in many ways including safe custody of shares, no loss of shares,
avoidance of formalities required for issuance of duplicate shares, and readily available for sale and
purchase in open market at better rates.

The Company will electronically transmit the Annual Accounts 2024 including proxy form through
email to Shareholders whose email addresses are available with the Company’s Share Registrar
based on the consent. In those cases, where email addresses are not available with the Company’s
Share Registrar, printed notices of AGM along with the weblink and QR enabled code to download
the said Annual Report have been dispatched. However, the Company will provide hard copies of
the Annual Report to any member on their demand, at their registered address, free of cost, within
one week of receiving such request.

The provision of gifts/ incentives in any form to shareholders at or in connection to general meetings
is strictly prohibited under Section 185 of the Companies Act 2017.

For any query / clarification / information, the shareholders may contact the Company at email
cs@waves.net.pk and/or the Share Registrar of the Company at email akbar@corplink.com.pk.
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Statement of Material Facts in respect of the Special Businesses

Agenda Item No. 4 — To Ratify and Approve the Related Party Transactions during the Financial
Year ended 31 December 2024

The Company has undertaken related party transactions with the following entities which includes
holding and associated companies/undertakings as the case may be.

a. Waves Home Appliances Limited (WAVESAPP),

b. Waves Marketplace Limited (WMPL),

c. Waves Builders & Developers (Private) Limited (WBDL),

d. Employee’s Provident Fund / Employees’ Pension Fund / Employees’ Gratuity Fund

All the transactions with related parties during financial year are entered into by the Company in the
ordinary course of business and at arm's length basis, under the policy of the Company for related party
transactions. All transactions entered into with related parties require the approval and recommendation
of the Audit Committee of the Board. Upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, such transactions
are placed before the Board of Directors for approval.

All transactions with the related parties are disclosed in the relevant note of the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024. The transactions with WAVES may include
transactions which are arising out of the implementation process of the Scheme and results in inter-
company balances appearing in the financial statements, till such time the implementation process
pursuant to the Scheme is fully complete. The nature of these relationships is also disclosed in the
relevant note.

Agenda Item No. 5 — To authorize the Board to approve Related Party Transactions during the
Financial Year ended 31 December 2025

The Company shall be conducting transactions with the related parties during the year ending 31
December 2025 in the ordinary course of business and at arm's length basis under the policy of the
Company for related party transactions. All transactions entered into with related parties require the
approval of the Audit Committee of the Board. Upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, such
transactions shall be placed before the Board of Directors for approval.

The transactions with WAVES may include transactions which are arising out of the implementation
process of the Scheme and results in inter-company balances appearing in the financial statements, till
such time the implementation process pursuant to the Scheme is fully complete.

In order to promote transparent business practices, the shareholders are recommended to authorize the
Board of Directors of the Company to approve transactions with the related parties from time-to-time on
case-to-case basis for the year ending 31 December 2025, which transactions shall be deemed to be
approved by the shareholders. These transactions shall be placed before the shareholders in the next
AGM for their formal ratification/approval. The Directors are interested in the resolutions only to the
extent of their common directorship in such related parties.

Interest of Directors

The Company has only one class of members. The effect of resolutions on the interests of Directors of
the Company does not differ from the effect of interest of other members except stated herein and the
Directors are interested in the resolution only to the extent of their common directorship in such related
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parties and that the directors of the Company and the related parties performing full time executive
functions are also interested to the extent of remunerations, benefits and allowances as per the
respective policies of the Company and the related parties, therefore may be regarded as interested to
that extent in the resolutions.

Material Information

All material information in respect of the special business including MOA/AOA, financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiary/wholly-owned subsidiaries including interim financial statements if any,
related party transactions and record, minutes of the previous general meetings, as the case may be,
shareholding of Directors of the Company and related parties along with their interest (if any), Scheme
of Arrangement sanctioned by honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore, statement of material facts and
other necessary documents in respect of the notice of AGM are kept at the registered office of the
Company and shall be available for inspection from the date of this notice till the conclusion of the AGM
and also placed to the extent applicable on the Company’s website www.waves.net.pk.

Proxy Form
The Proxy Form is attached with the notice of Notice of Annual General Meeting.
Postal Ballot Form

The Postal Ballot Form is attached with the notice of Notice of Annual General Meeting.
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WAVES CORPORATION LIMITED

FORM OF PROXY

The Company Secretary
Waves Corporation Limited
9 KM, Multan Road, Lahore

I/ We
of
being a member of Waves Corporation Limited hereby appoint

of

or failing him
of

as my proxy in my absence to attend, speak and vote for me on my behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held on Wednesday, 30 April 2025 at 12:00 p.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my / our hand this day of
Rs. 50/-
Revenue
Stamp
Witness No.1
Name :
Address :
CNIC No.:
Signature of Member(s)
Witness No. 2
Name
Address :
CNIC No.:
(Name in Block letters)
Folio No.
Participant ID No.
No. of shares
Account No. in CDC
Important:

1. CDC Account Holders are requested to strictly follow the guidelines mentioned in the Notice of Meeting.
2. A Member entitled to attend a General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her.
3 Members are requested:
(@) To affix Revenue Stamp of Rs. 50/- at the place indicated above.
(b) To sign across the Revenue Stamp in the same style of signature as is registered with the Company.
(c) To write down their Folio Numbers.
4, This form of proxy, duly completed and signed across a Rs. 5/- revenue stamp, must be deposited/sent at the
Company’s Registered Office not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or may be sent
through the email as given in this notice followed by courier/post to the Company’s registered office.
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WAVES CORPORATION LIMITED
BALLOT PAPER FOR VOTING THROUGH POST

For poll at the Annual General Meeting of Waves Corporation Limited (WAVES or the Company) to be held on
Wednesday, 30 April 2025 at 12:00 p.m. at the Registered Office of the Company.

The designated email address for the Chairman at which the duly filled in ballot paper can be sent at
cs@waves.net.pk

Name of shareholder/joint shareholders

Registered Address

Folio No. / CDC Participant / Investor 1D with sub-account No

Number of shares held (shall be taken as of book closure in notice)

CNIC, NICOP/Passport No. (for foreigner) (Copy to be attached)

Additional Information ((In case of representative of body corporate, corporation and
Federal Government.)

Name of Authorized Signatory:

CNIC, NICOP/Passport No. (In case of foreigner) of Authorized Signatory - (Copy to
be attached)

Special Business: Resolution 4

I/we hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following resolutions through postal ballot by conveying my/our
assent or dissent to the following resolution by placing tick (v') mark in the relevant box below or may write
“Approve” or “Disapprove”

“‘Resolved that the transactions carried out by the Company with Waves Corporation Limited, Waves Marketplace
Limited, Waves Builders and Developers (Private) Limited and Employees’ Pension/Gratuity/Provident Fund (as
the case may be), during the financial year 31 December 2024 as given in the related party note of the Annual
Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024, be and hereby are ratified
and approved.”

No. Resolution Information I/We approve Resolution I/We disapprove the
Resolution

1 | Special Business: Resolution 4 For: Against:

Special Business: Resolution 5

I/'we hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following resolutions through postal ballot by conveying my/our
assent or dissent to the following resolution by placing tick (v') mark in the relevant box below or may write
“Approve” or “Disapprove”

‘Resolved further that the Board of Directors of the Company is authorized to approve all related party
transactions to be carried out on case-to-case basis during the financial year 31 December 2025. These
transactions shall be deemed to be approved by the shareholders and shall be placed before the shareholders in
the next AGM for their formal ratification/approval”

No. Resolution Information I/'We approve Resolution I/We disapprove the
Resolution

1 | Special Business: Resolution 5 For: Against:

Signature of Shareholder
Number of Shares Held
Place and Date

Notes:

1. Dully filled postal ballot should be sent to Chairman of the Company, at 9-KM, Multan Road, Lahore (Waves Factory Office) along with
the copy of CNIC, NICOP/Passport (for foreigner). The form should reach 48 hours before the meeting. The Signature on the postal ballot
should match with the signatures on the CNIC, NICOP/Passport.

2. Incomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, torn, mutilated, overwritten, expired identification copy shall be rejected.
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11. ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The annual audited Consolidated financial statements and the Standalone Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 December 2024 are attached to this Report
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11.1 Consolidated Financial Statements

45



Waves Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries
Consolidated statement of financial position
As at December 31, 2024

Equity and liabilities

Share capital and reserves

Share capital

Capital reserves

Loan from directors

Revaluation surplus

Unappropriated profit

Equity atlributable to owners of the parent company
Non-controlling interest

Non-current liabilities

Long term financings

Lease liabilities
Employee retirement benefits
Deferred taxation

Deferred income

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Accrued markup

Short term borrowings

Current portion of long term liabilities
Unclaimed dividend

Contingencies and commitments

2024

2023

(Rupees in "000)

2,814,062 2,814,062
5,030,661 5,030,661
430,084 229,017
488,484 550,280
1,301,142 1,002,556
10,064,433 9,626,576
2,866,718 1,593,540
13,031,151 11,220,118
5,596,668 766,333
13,341 33,294
20,720 19,955
244,974 284,817
4,070 5,232
5,879,773 1,109,632
3,656,374 3,501,961
295,172 810,661 |.
1,021,535 4,780,395
443,257 713,811
1,179 1,179
5,417,517 9,817,007
24,328,441 22,146,755

Assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investment property

Long term trade receivables
Long term deposits

Employee retirement henefits

Current assets

Inventories

Stores, spares and loose lools

Trade debts

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Short term investment

Advance income tax

Cash and bank balances

Aravexap

2024

2023

(Rupees in '000)

8,795,587 8,009,252
2,763,518 2,798,912
3,585,432 17,421
1,150 962
30,402 46,804
16,092 16,092
15,192,181 10,979,443
2,494,012 6,071,464
21,3086 28,110
5,607,690 4,193,678
709,769 483,997
3,000 3,000
250,152 327,189
50,330 59,874
9,136,259 11,167,312
24,328,441 22,146,755




Waves Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of profit or loss
For the year ended December 31, 2024

2024 2023
(Rupees in '000)
Revenue - net of sales returns 5,072,833 6,295,795
Less: Sales tax and trade discounts (1,128,076) (1,088,469)
Revenue - net i 3,944,757 5,206,326
Cost of sales (2,725,462) (3,805,138)
Gross profit 1,219,295 1,401,188
Marketing, selling and distribution costs (594,621) (666,682)
Administrative expenses (382,379) (424,481)
Other operating expenses (188,105) (124,212)
Other income 1,737,544 380,554
Operating profit 1,791,734 566,367
Finance costs (700,139) (265,502)
Profit before levies and taxation 1,091,595 300,865
Levies ' (30,858) (52,612)
Profit before taxation 1,060,737 248,252
Income tax expense 24,939 8,528
Profit after taxation 1,085,676 256,780
Attributable to:
" Owners of the Group 1,044,690 226,692
Non-controlling interests ' _ 40,986 30,089
' 1,085,676 256,781

Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 3.86 0.91




Waves Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries
Consolidsated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income

ftems that will never be reclassified to profit or loss account:
- Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment net of tax
- Actuarial gain / (loss) on employee retirement benefits

ltems that may be reclassified to profit and loss account

Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to:

Owners of the Group
Non-controlling interests

2024

2023

(Rupees in "'000)

1,085,676 256,780
- 56,856

634 7,425

634 64,281
1,086,310 321,061
1,045,039 274,553
41,271 46,509
1,086,310 321,062




Waves Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Balance as at December 31, 2022

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Effect of incremental depreciation on revaluation surplus - net of tax
Share issuance costs of subsidiary company

Transactions with owners of the Company
Loan obtained
Balance as at December 31, 2023

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Incremental depreciation relating to surplus an revaluation - net of tax
Realisation of sumplus on disposal

Increase in non-controling interest on diluation of investments
Transactions with owners of the Company

Loss on sale of divestment of subsidiary

Loan obtained

Balance as at December 31, 2024

Attributable to owners of the parent company

Revenue
Capital
BT A Reserve Non-
Share capital Sub-total i
Capital reserves | Loan from Revaluation | Unappropriated : cz::t;’:);::g L
(Note 6) directors surplus profit
(Rupees in '000)
2,814,062 5,030,661 119,497 528,895 753,581 9,246,696 1,548,470 10,795,166
- - - - 226,692 226,692 30,089 256,781
- - - 47,881 - 47,861 16,420 64,281
= = - 47,861 226,692 274,553 46,509 321,062
- - - (26,476) 26,476 - - -
- - - - (4,193) (4,193) (1,439) (5,632)
- - 109,520 - - 109,520 - 108,620
2,814,062 5,030,661 229,017 550,280 1,002,556 9,626,576 1,593,540 11,220,116
- - - - 1,044,690 1,044,690 40,986 1,085,676
- - - - 349 349 285 634
- - - - 1,045,039 1,045,039 41,271 1,086,310
- - - (25,804) 25,804 - = -
- - - (35,992) 35,992 - - =
- - - - - - 1,331,907 1,331,907
g z P - (808,249) (808,249) - (808,249)
- - 201,067 - - 201,067 - 201,067
52814,062 5,030,661 430,084 488,484 1,301,142 10,064,433 2,966,718 13,031,151




Waves Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries
Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Finance costs
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of Investment property
Allowance / (reversal) for expected credit loss
Allowance for doubtful receivables
Reversal of provision for cbsolete stock
Fair value gain in investment property
Effect of termination of lease
Amortisation of deferred income

" Impairment of property plant and equipment
Unrealised exchange (gain)/loss
Debit balance written off
Credit balance written back
Effect of present value discounting of accrued mark up
Employee retirement benefits
Profit before working capital changes

Effect on cash flows due to working capital changes

{Increase) / decrease in current assets

Inventories

Stores, spares and loose tools

Trade receivables

Long term trade receivables

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities:

Trade and other payables

Cash generatad from operations
Income tax paid
Procesds against income tax refunds
Finance costs paid
~Employae retirement benefits paid
~ Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Additions in property, plant and equipment

Additions in intangibles

Long term deposits

Proceeds from disposal of long term investments
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and aguipment
Proceeds from from disposal of investment property

Net cash (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Long term financings

Lease liabilities

Short term borrowings

Loan from sponsoring directars

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities

Net dacrease in cash and cash equivalents

-Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2024

2023

(Rupees in '000)

1,091,595 300,865
288,274 342,677
35,304 39,331
700,139 265,502
(40,393) (29,743)
(39,579) =
152,828 59,218
6,502 5,757
a (26,069)
(461,584) (171
11 (1,366)
(1,163) 1,384
896 2
(85) 22,867
12,370 -
(47,926) (53,916)
(823,5686) ‘
3,617 4,145
877,430 930,481
481,278 (28,732)
6,804 16,034
(1,599,952)|| 1,421,593
(188) 339
(239,274) 39,066
395,341 (47.788)
(955,991) 1,400,512
(78,561) 2,330,993
(11,402)  (130,550)
32,160 =
(471,645)  (153,689)
(1,959) (3,378)
(531,407) 2,043,376
(236,565)| [ (1,898,287)
- (43)
16,402 8,514
503,676 -
106,959 41,366
58,000 .
448,472 (1,848,452)
(49,828) 163,400
(18,560) (98,747)
(59,287)|| (423,575)
201,067 109,520
73,302 (248,393)
(9,543) (54,469)
59,873 114,342
50,330 59,873
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11.2 Standalone Financial Statements
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the members of Waves Corporation Limited

Report on the audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Waves Corporation Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, the statement of profit
or loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information
and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company’s affairs as at December 31, 2024 and of the profit, other comprehensive income, the
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Unconsolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Following are the key audit matters:

Sr.

No.

Impairment
subsidiaries
The Company has made significant investments

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

testing of investment in

Our audit procedures among others included

in subsidiaries amounting to Rupees 3999.211
million as at reporting date and are carried at
cost less impairment loss. Refer to note 16 to
the unconsoclidated financial statements

The impairment testing of the investment in
subsidiaries has been identified as a key audit
matter due to the significant judgment and
estimation involved, the potential material
impact on the unconsolidated financial
statements, and the importance of ensuring the
accuracy and reliability of the impairment
assessment, which directly affects the
unconsolidated  financial position and
performance of the company.

obtaining an understanding of the process and
controls on this area relevant to our audit. Further, we
have:

We assessed the reasonableness of management's
forecasted cash flows by comparing them to historical
performance, industry benchmarks, and external
economic indicators, ensuring consistency and
reliability in the impairment assessment.

We scrutinized the appropriateness of the discount
rates applied by management by evaluating market-
based data, such as comparable company multiples
and risk premiums, to validate the assumptions
underlying the impairment testing process.

We independently evaluated the sensitivity analysis



2. Contingencies
As disclosed in Note 13 to the accompanying
unconsolidated financial statements, the
Company has contingent liabilities in respect of
various matters, which are pending adjudication
before respective authorities and courts of law.

Contingencies require management to make
judgments and estimates in relation to the
interpretation of laws, statutory rules and
regulations, and the probability of outcome and
financial impact, if any, on the Company for
disclosure and recognition and measurement
of any provisions that may be required against
such contingencies in accordance with
applicable financial reporting standards.

we have identified contingencies as a significant
area of focus for this audit engagement,
particularly due to the inherent uncertainty and
complexity surrounding pending litigations. This
marks our first year of auditing the company,
and our examination has revealed the need for
enhanced scrutiny in evaluating the adequacy
of provisions for potential liabilities arising from
legal proceedings.

Emphasis of Matter

As fully explained in note 2 and note 13.1.17 to these unconsolidated financial s

performed by management to assess the potential
impact of changes in key assumptions on the
recoverable amount of the investment, ensuring
adequate disclosure of the range of possible

outcomes and their implications for the financial
statements.

Our audit procedures among others included
obtaining an understanding of the process and
controls on this area relevant to our audit. Further, we
have:

Obtained and reviewed detail of the pending matters
and discussed the same with the Company's
management.

Reviewed the correspondence of the Company with
the relevant authorities, tax and legal advisors,
including judgments or orders passed by the
competent authorities in relation to the issues involved

or matters which have similarities with the issues
involved.

Obtained and reviewed confirmations from the
Company's external tax and legal advisors for their
views on the probable outcome of the open tax
assessments and other contingencies.

Involved internal tax professionals to assess
reasonability of management's conclusions on such
pending matters.

Reviewed and evaluated the adequacy of disclosures
made in respect of such contingencies in accordance
with the requirements of the financial reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan.

tatements, subsequent to

completion of the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction and transfer of home appliance
business by the parent company to the Company, legal and procedural formalities including registration /
updation of the name of the subsidiary company with the relevant departments / utility companies could not be
completed till the date of issuance of report. Due to certain impediments of such routing of the transactions, the
impact of non-compliance, if any, cannot be ascertained at this point of time.

Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included

in the Directors’ Report, but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsclidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.



Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to

enable the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they

could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company'’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our



report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon
have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with
the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of
the Company's business: and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the
Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The Engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is Mr. Imran Bashir.

Lahore: Rizwan & Company
UDIN: Chartered Accountants
\
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Waves Corporation Limited
Unconsolidated statement of profit or loss
For the year ended December 31, 2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees in ('000)
Other income 21 1,272,583 321,430
Administrative and general expenses ©22 (45,490) (51,222)
Other operating expenses 23 (773,279) (56,276)
453,814 213,932
Finance costs 24 (396,861) (54,358)
- Profit before taxation and levies 66,953 159,571
Levies 25 4,878 (2,494)
Profit before taxation 61,831 167,077
Income tax expense 26 - (8,891)
Profit after taxation 61,831 148,186
Rupees
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 27 0.22 0.53

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

\&M% | e
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Waves Corporation Limited
Unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended December 31, 2024

2024 2023
Rupees in ('000)

Profit after taxation 61,831 148,186
ltems that will never be reclassified to profit and loss account: ‘ - -

Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss account - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 61,831 148,186

~ The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Waves Corporation Limited

Unconsolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended December 31, 2024

Balance as at December 31, 2022

Profit for the year ended December 31, 2023
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Bélance as at December 31, 2023

Loss for the year ended December 31, 2024
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer to retained earnings upen disposal
of investment property

Balance as at December 31, 2024

Capital reserves ::;:::‘:
csa';?t: r:saer:'lvtzls Res\:larlpuI:tslon Accumulated Total
(Note 7) profit / (loss)
Rupees ('000)

2,814,062 5,030,&-61 151,467 207,171 8,203,361
= - - 148,186 148,186
: : 148,‘; 86 148,1_86
2,814,062 5,030,661 151,467 355,357 8,351,647
- . - 61,831 61,831
: 61 ,8-31 61 ,631

- - (35,992) 35,992 -
2,814,062 5,030,661 115475 453,180 8,413,378

The annexed notes frpm 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Waves Corporation Limited
Unconsolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended December 31, 2024

2024 2023

Note Rupees in ("000)
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation 56,953 159,571
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Fair value (gain) / loss on remeasurement of investment property . 21 (459,390) 50,480
Markup income on loan to subsidiary 21 (331,198) (114,495)
Effect of present value discounting of accrued mark up 21 (397,453) -
Credit balance written back 21 - (37,224)
Loss / (gain) on disposal of operating fixed assets 23 - (22,580)
Loss on sale of investment in subsidiary 23 772,140 -
Unwinding of long term receivables from subsidiary 21 (73,062) -
Finance costs 24 396,861 54,358
Amortisation of deferred government grant 21 - (140)
Operating (loss) / profit before working capital changes (35,149) 89,970
Changes in working capital
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Advances and other receivables (3,765) (98,662)
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities:
Trade and other payables (531,345) 262,139
Net changes in working capital (535,110) 163,477
Cash (used in) / generated from operations (570,259) 253,447
Finance costs paid (3,490) (218,854)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (573,749) 34,593
Cash flows from investing activities ‘
Proceeds from disposal of investment property ‘ 60,000 =
Proceeds from disposal of long term investments ) 503,676 -
Net cash generated from investing activities 563,676 =
Cash flows from financing activities
Short term borrowings 6,143 (1,047)
Long term financings - (31,675)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities : 6,143 (32,722)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (3,930) 1,871
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year . 21,862 19,991
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 17,932 21,862

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

T\ e
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Waves Corporation Limited
Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements
For the year ended December 31, 2024

1

Legal Status and Nature of Business

Waves Corporation Limited (formerly, Waves Singer Pakistan Limited) ("the Company") is incorporated in
Pakistan under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) as a public
Company limited by shares and is quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. Consequent to approval of
scheme of arrangement, the principal line of business has been amended which includes managing its
investment in subsidiaries which are principally engaged in manufacturing and assembly of domestic
consumer appliances along with retailing and trading the same and real estate development. The registered
office of the Company is located at 9-K.M, Hanjarwal, Multan Road, Lahore.

Geographical locations of the manufacturing facilities of the Company are located at:

= 9-K.M Multan Road, Hanjarwal, Lahore.
- Mouza Mustafabad, 41-K.M.. Ferozepur Road, Off 2-K. M. Rohi Nala Road, Tehsil and District Kasur.

As per Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction (the Scheme) as sanctioned by the
Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore on May 27, 2022, the Company transferred its manufacturing

undertaking to its subsidiary Company, i.e. Waves Home Appliances Limited with effect from effective date,
i.e. September 01, 2021.

After transfer of manufacturing undertaking, certain bills, invoices and contracts relating to the company’s
business activities continued in the name of the Company due to non-completion of legal and procedural
formalities. Consequently, the Company reported all such transactions in its sales tax returns on account of
utilities, supplies, imports, local stores and spares to subsidiary company, i.e. Waves Home Appliances
Limited. The above stated transactions have been recorded to absorb the impact of Sales Tax Input available
in sales tax records of the Company, that could have been lost in absence of any legitimate sales tax output
available to the Company. The summary of the transactions has been given hereunder:

2024 2023
Rupees in “000”
Sales 3,170,183 4176,119
Purchases 1,495,959 2,367,440
Others 76,395 149,055

As at reporting date; the Company has transferred all transactions pertaining to advance income tax, advance
against imports and sales tax payable appearing in the books of the Company with effect from January 01,
2022 to the subsidiary company, i.e. Waves Home Appliances Limited as these amount should have been

transferred to the subsidiary Company pursuant to the scheme of arrangement as stated in note 2 and note
13.1.17 upon transfer of Home Appliance business.

Separate Financial Statements

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company in which investments in
subsidiaries are accounted for on the basis of direct equity interest rather than on the basis of reported results
and net assets of the investees. Consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared and
presented separately. The Company has the following long term investments:

2024 2023

Name of subsidiary companies (Direct holding percentage)
- Waves Builders and Developers (Private) Limited 100 100
- Waves Marketplace Limited 100 100

- Waves Home Appliances Limited 55.08 74.56



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Waves Corporation Limited

Basis of Preparation
Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and

reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017:

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for
freehold land which is carried at revalued amount and investment property which are stated at fair value less
impairment losses as referred to in note 5.1 and 5.2.

Functional and presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee which is also the Company's
functional and presentation currency and have been rounded off to the nearest thousand.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting
standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under circumstances, and the results of which form the basis for making Jjudgment about carrying value of

assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial statements or where
judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

Note
- Residual value, market values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment 54
- Investment property 52
- Provisions 5.7
- Taxation 5.10
- Impairment of financial and non-financial assets 6.15

New or amendments / interpretations to existing standards, interpretations and forthcoming
requirements

There are amendments or improvements and interpretations to existing standards which became applicable to
the Company for the financial year beginning on January 01 2024, however, these do not have any material

impact on the Company's financial reporting and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial
statements.

L



4.6

4.6.1

4.6.2

4.7

Waves Corporation Limited

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting and reporting
standards that are not yet effective

There are standards and certain amendments or improvements to approved accounting and reporting
standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company for the financial year
beginning on January 1, 2024. These are not expected to have any material impact on the Company's
financial reporting and, therefore, have not been presented in these financial statements except for:

Amendment to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 'Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments":

These amendments:

- clarify the requirements for the timing of recognition and derecognition of some financial assets and
liabilities, with a new exception for some financial liabilities settled through an electronic cash transfer
system;

- clarify and add further guidance for assessing whether a financial asset meets the solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) criterion;

- add new disclosures for certain instruments with contractual terms that can change cashflows (such as
some instruments with features linked to the achievement of environment, social and governance (ESG)
targets); and -

- make updates to the disclosures for equity instruments designated at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVOCI).

An important clarification brought about in these amendments is that a payment instruction (e.g. a cheque)
that is prepared for a future payment will generally not meet the requirements for the financial liability to be
discharged and hence can not be derecognised. The previous practice of financial liabilities being
derecognised upon issuance of cheques would, hence, need to be reconsidered.

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements' (IFRS 18):

A new standard on presentation and disclosure in financial statements, with a focus on updates to the
statement of profit or loss is being introduced. The key new concepts introduced in IFRS 18 relate to:

- the structure of the statement of profit or loss;

- required disclosures in the financial statements for certain profit or loss performance measures that are
reported outside an entity’s financial statements (that is, management-defined performance measures);
and

- enhanced principles on aggregation and disaggregation which apply to the primary financial statements
and notes in general.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair value, both
for financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

Management has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3
fair values.

Management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the management
assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the
requirements of the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, including the level in the fair
value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified. When measuring the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Company uses market observable data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized into
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

0



5.1

Waves Corporation Limited

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.

Material Accounting Policies Information

Adoption of IAS 12 application guidance on accounting for minimum and final taxes

The Company has classified its current income tax to the extent of income tax based on revenue i.e. minimum
tax under the Section of 113 the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 to levies as explained in International Financial
Reporting Interpretation Committee (IFRIC) 21 "Levies" pursuant to "IAS 12 Application Guidance on
Accounting for minimum and final taxes" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan clarifying
that levies whose calculation use data such as gross amount of revenues, assets and liabilities do not meet
the definition of income taxes provided in International Accounting Standard 12, Income taxes i.e. not within
the scope International Accounting Standard 12, Income taxes rather are within the scope of International
Accounting Standard 37, Provision, contingent liabilities and contingent assets".

The Company has adopted to designate the amount calculated on taxable income using notified tax rate as an
income tax within the scope of International Accounting Standard 12, Income taxes and recognises it as
current income tax expense. Any excess over the amount designated as income tax is recognised as a levy
falling under the scope of IFRIC 21 / Provision, contingent liabilities and contingent assets. The respected
change have been explained in note 25 and 26 to these financial statements.

The change has been corrected by restating each of affected financial statements line items for the prior
periods and the comparative information has been restated, as follows;

Impact on the financial statements of the Company owing to application of minimum taxation in the year ended
on December 31, 2023 is as under:

December 31, 2023

As previously Adjustments  As restated

reported
Rupees "000"

Statement of financial position
Provision for levies - 1,732 1,732
Income tax payable 1732 (1,732) -
Statement of profit or loss
Profit before levies and income tax 159,571 - 159,571
Levies - (2,494) (2,494)
Profit before income tax 169,571 (2,494) 167,077
Income tax expense (11,385) 2,494 (8.881)
Profit after tax 148,186 - 148,186

There was no impact of statement of comprehensive income, statement of cash flows and statement of
changes in equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any,
except for the land which is stated at revalued amount less impairment loss, if any, and buildings and plant
and machinery which are stated at the revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition of an asset.

Land, buildings and plant and machinery are revalued by professionally qualified valuer with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the net carrying amount does not differ materially from the fair value (market value). In
case of revalued assets, any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the
gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated at the revalued amount of the asset.

Increase in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation surplus. Each year the
difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the statement

81%4



5.2

53

Waves Corporation Limited

of profit or loss, and depreciation based on the asset's original cost is transferred to retained earnings. Upon
disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular assets being sold is transferred to retained earnings.

All transfers to / from surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are net of applicable deferred
tax.

Useful lives are determined by the management based on expected usage of assets, expected physical wear

and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and similar limits on the use of the assets and other
similar factors.

Depreciation is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the straight-line method whereby the
depreciable amount of an asset is depreciated over its estimated useful life. Depreciation on additions is
charged from the month in which the asset is available for use and up to the month of disposal.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if impact on
depreciation is significant. The Company’s estimate of the residual value of its property, plant and equipment
as at balance sheet date has not required any adjustment as its impact is considered insignificant.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
item of property, plant and equipment. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the unconsolidated

statement of profit or loss as and when incurred, gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the
statement of profit or loss.

Capital work in progress
It is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. It includes expenditure incurred and advances made in

respect of assets in the course of their construction and installation. These cost are transferred to relevant
assets category as and when assets are available for intended use.

Investment property

Property, comprising land or a building or part thereof, held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both
are classified as investment property. These are not held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. The Company's business model ie. the Company's intentions
regarding the use of property is the primary criterion for classification as an investment property.

Investment property is initially measured at cost (including the transaction costs). However when an owner
occupied property carried at fair value becomes an investment property because its use has changed, the
transfer to the investment property is at fair value on the date of transfer and any balance of surplus on the
revaluation of the related assets, on the date of such a transfer continues to be maintained in the surplus
account on revaluation of property, plant and equipment. Upon disposal, any surplus previously recorded in the
revaluation surplus account is directly transferred to retained earnings and the transfer is not made through the
statement of profit or loss. However any gain or loss on disposal of investment property (calculated as the

difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognized in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

The transfer to investment property is made when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by the
end of owner occupation. In case of dual purpose properties, the same is classified as investment property,
only if the portion could be sold or leased out separately under finance lease.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company measures the investment property at fair value at each
reporting date and any subsequent change in fair value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss (i.e. in
case where the owner occupied property carried at fair value becomes an investment property, the fair value
gain to be recognized in the statement of profit or loss would be the difference between the fair value at the
time of initial classification as investment property and fair value at the time of subsequent remeasurement).

The revaluation of investment properties are carried out by independent professionally qualified valuers on the
basis of active market price.

Employee retirement and other service benefits

Defined benefit plans

The Company operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme for the eligible executives and managers
(old Singer Pakistan Limited's employees) and a funded gratuity scheme for eligible employees (old Singer
Pakistan Limited's employees) other than field staff. Provisions / contributions are made in the unconsolidated

financial statements to cover obligations on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out annually under the
Projected Unit Credit MethodM
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5.5

5.6

5.7

Waves Corporation Limited

Amount recognized in statement of financial position represents the present value of defined benefit
obligations as reduced by the fair value of the plan assets, if any. All actuarial gains and losses are recognized
in 'Other Comprehensive Income' as they occur. Past service cost resulting from the changes to defined
benefit plan is immediately recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Current service cost together with net
interest cost are also charged to the statement of profit or loss.

Calculation of gratuity and pension require assumptions to be made of future outcomes which mainly includes
increase in remuneration, expected long term return on plan assets and the discount rate used to convert
future cash flows to current values. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying assumptions.

Staff Compensated absences

The Company recognizes the liability for compensated absences in respect of employees in the period in

which they are earned up to the reporting date on the basis of un-availed earned leaves balance at the end of
the year.

Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less impairment, if any, in the Company’s separate financial
statements. At subsequent reporting date, the recoverable amounts of investments are estimated to determine
the extent of impairment losses, if any, and carrying amounts of investments are adjusted accordingly.

Impairment losses are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit or loss. Investments in subsidiaries
that have suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of impairment at each reporting date.
Where impairment losses are subsequently reversed, the carrying amounts of the investments are increased
to the revised recoverable amounts but limited to the extent of initial cost of investments. Impairment losses

recognized in the statement of profit or loss on investments in subsidiaries are reversed through the statement
of profit or loss,

The Company is required to issue consolidated financial statements along with its separate financial
statements, in accordance with the requirements of IAS 27, ‘Separate Financial Statements’.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, and deposits held with banks having original maturities
of three months or less and where these are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments
rather than for investments or other purposes. Short term running finance facilities availed by the Company are
also included as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Account balances are classified as current liabilities if payment is

due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycles of business if longer). If not, they are classified
as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of liabilities in
foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of the respective liabilities.

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimates.

The Company accounts for its warranty obligations based on historical trends when the underlying products or

services are SOId{V]
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5.8 Revenue recognition

5.8.1 Sale of goods

Revenue represents the fair value of consideration received or receivable for sale of goods, net of sales tax,
sales returns and related discounts. Revenue is recognized when or as performance obligation is satisfied by

transferring control of promised goods or services to a customer and control either transfers overtime or point
in time.

5.8.2 Return on investments

Income on investments and profit and loss sharing bank accounts are recognized on accrual basis using the
effective interest rate method.

5.8.3 Rentalincome

Rental income from investment property is recognized as other income on a straight-line basis over the term of
lease.

58.4 Dividend income
Dividend income and entitlement of bonus shares are recognized when the right to receive is established.

5.9 Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. It also includes refund liabilities

arising out of customers' right to claim amounts from the Company on account of contractual delays in delivery
of performance obligations and incentive on target achievements.

5.10 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity / surplus on
revaluation of fixed assets or in other comprehensive income. The Company has determined that interest and
penalties related to income taxes, including uncertain tax treatments, do not meet the definition of income
taxes, and therefore accounted for them under IAS 37 Provisions, contingent liabilities and Contingent assets.

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan has designated the Company and subsidiaries Waves
Home Appliances Limited, Waves Marketplace Limited, Waves Builder and Developers (Private) Limited,
(Private) as a "Group" for the purpose of group taxation Section 59AA and group relief under Section 59B of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Company has opted for Group Taxation under section 59AA of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Company and subsidiaries Waves Builders and Developers (Private)
Limited and Waves Marketplace Limited are part of the Group Taxation. Under Group Taxation, the Company

has accounting for the related taxes under standalone taxpayer approach. Under this approach, current and
deferred taxes are recognized as if the entity was taxable in its own right.

Current taxation

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date, and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous
years. Provision for current tax is based on current rates of taxation in Pakistan after taking into account tax
credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any. The amount of unpaid income tax in respect of the current or

prior periods is recognized as a liability. Any excess paid over what is due in respect of the current or prior
periods is recognized as an asset.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet method in respect of all temporary differences arising
from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the unconsolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. However, deferred
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of transaction neither affects accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets

e
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are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The
carrying amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets
to be utilized. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss, except in the case of items

credited or charged to other comprehensive income or equity in which case it is included in other
comprehensive income or equity.

Inventories

Residential apartments and commercial area available for future sale are classified as stock-in trade. These
are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Work-in-process comprises of apartments and
commercial area in the process of construction / development. Cost in relation to work-in-process comprises
of proportionate cost of land, cost of direct materials, labor and appropriate overheads. Cost in relation to land

transferred from investment property is the fair value of the land on the date of transfer and any subsequent
expenditures incurred thereon. -

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs
necessary to be incurred in order to make the sale.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock-in-trade on a regular basis. Carrying amount of stock-in-
trade is adjusted where the net realizable value is below the cost. Net realizable value is the estimated selling

price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognized in unconsolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments
Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable

to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at
the transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI), fair value through statement of profit or loss (FVTPL) and in case of an
equity instrument it is classified as FVOCI or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the
first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

Amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPLM
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- itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The
amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and

impairment are recognized in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognized in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost comprise of cash and bank balances and other receivables.

5.13.3 Debt Instrument - FVOCI

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL:

- itis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and ;

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in statement of profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OC| are

reclassified to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. However, the Company has no such instrument at
the reporting date.

5.13.4 Equity Instrument - FVOCI

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to

present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI and these investments are never reclassified to

unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. However, the Company has no such instrument at the reporting
date.

5.13.5 Fair value through statement of profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured
at FVTPL.

On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend

income, are recognized in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. The Company has no such investments
at the reporting date.

5.13.6 Financial assets - Business model assessment

For the purposes of the assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
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contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would
not meet this condition.

In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features:

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.9. non-recourse features).

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as
at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilites at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest
expense, are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, while the interest expense and foreign exchange gains and

losses are recognized in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognized in statement of profit or loss. -

The Company's financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, long and short term borrowings,
accrued markup and dividend payable.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the

Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

The Company might enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of financial
position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In these
cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of

the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the

consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the unconsolidated
financial statements only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts

and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Impairment
Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on:

- financial assets measured at amortized cost;
- debt investments measured at FVOCI: and

- contract assets q/v_.,
X
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The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which
are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- other debt securities, bank balances and other receivables for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default

occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and

all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to
the assets’ original effective interest rate.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information

and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than
past due for a reasonable period of time. Loss allowances for trade receiva bles and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that
result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if
the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually
makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a
reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off.
However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply
with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

The Company has elected to measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based
on the Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment. The Company reviews the recoverability of its trade debts, deposits, advances
and other receivables to assess amount of loss allowance required on an annual basis. Impairment of cash
and cash equivalents has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities

of the exposures. The Company considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk based on
the external credit ratings of the counterparties.

Non - Financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or
cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that

reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash
generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the assets or its cash generating unit exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in unconsolidated statement of profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying
amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro rata basis. Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are
assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.
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Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the
remaining assets and liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial
assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefit assets, investment property or bioclogical assets, which continue
to be measured in accordance with the Company’s other accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial

classification as held-for-sale or held-for distribution and subsequent gains and losses on remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Transactions and balances

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange
rate at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translations at the year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are taken to profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that
are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions, Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured at fair
value are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange
differences are generally included in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Dividends and appropriations to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which these
are approved. Transfer between reserves approved subsequent to the reporting date is considered as non-

adjusting event and is recognized in the unconsolidated financial statements in the period in which such
transfers are made.

Earnings per share

As required under IAS 33 Earnings Per Share, basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit after tax
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year. The Company is not exposed to the dilutive effect on EPS.

Deferred income

Government grant

The Company recognizes the benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest as Government
grant. The benefit of the below-market rate of interest shall be measured as the difference between the initial
carrying value of the loan determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and the proceeds received and is presented
as deferred grant. The recognition of government grants in profit or loss is done on a systematic basis over the
periods in which the expenses for which the grants are intended to compensate,

Non-current asset held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, are classified as held-for sale if it is
highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the
remaining assets and liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial
assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefit assets. investment property or biclogical assets, which continue
to be measured in accordance with the Company's other accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial

classification as held-for-sale or held-for distribution and subsequent gains and losses on remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are no longer amortised
or depreciated, and any equity-accounted investee is no longer equity accounted.

Allocation of expenses

Certain expenses are allocated by the Company to its subsidiaries in accordance to a basis approved by the
Company and its subsidiaries.

%
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2024 2023 2024 2023
Note (Number of shares) (Rupees in "000)
Share Capital
Authorised share capital 6.1.1 300,000,000 300,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000

The authorized share capital stands at Rupees 3,000 million, divided into 300,000,000 shares of Rupees 10
each, according to the Memorandum and Articles of Association the Company.

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

2024 2023 2024 2023
(Number of shares) (Rupees in '000)
Fully paid-up ordinary shares of
Rupees 10 each
Issued for cash 105,263,597 105,263,597 1,052,637 1,052,637
Issued for consideration other than cash 703,733 703,733 7,037 7,037
Issued as fully paid bonus shares 78,988,759 78,988,759 789,888 789,888
Issued under schemes of amalgamation 96,450,000 96,450,000 964,500 964,500
281,406,089 281,408,089 2,814,062 2,814,062

Movevement in paid up share capital is as under:

2024 2023 2024 2023

(Number of shares) (Rupees in '000)
Balance as at 01 January 281,406,089 281,406,089 2,814,062 2,814,062
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Balance as at December 31 281,406,089 281,406,089 2,814,062 2,814,062

Ordinary shares of the Company held by associated persons and undertaking at year end are as follows:

2024 2023 2024 2023

(Percentage held) (Number of shares)
Haroon Ahmad Khan (CEO) 33.28% 38.32% 93,640,286 107,840,286
Nighat Haroon Khan (Wife of CEO) 6.16% 10.00% 17,332,411 28,132,411
39.44% 48.32% _ 110,972,697 135,972,697

Pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement, approved by Honorable Sindh High Court through its Order dated
May 22, 2018, Singer Pakistan Limited was merged and combined with Cool Industries (Private) Limited
and Link Wel (Private) Limited. The Company has issued 96,450,000 shares to the shareholders of Cool
Industries (Private) Limited and Link Wel (Private) Limited pursuant to the said scheme.

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in '000)
Capital Reserves
Share premium 71 5,025,661 5,025,661
Other capital reserve 7.2 5,000 5,000
5,030,661 5,030,661

A2
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Share premium
This represents excess of consideration received / market value of share acquired under scheme of
arrangement over the face value of shares issued amounting to Rupees 4,581 million in result of 2017

scheme of arrangement and Rupees 445 million as a result of 2021 scheme of arrangement. This reserve
can only be utilized by the Company for the purpose specified in Section 81(2) of the Companies Act, 2017.

Other capital reserve

This represents the value assigned to a shop acquired by the company in exchange for a shop on rent in
1993.

2024 2023
Note Rupees in ('000)
Revaluation Surplus
Revaluation surplus - as on January 01 151,467 151,467
Originated during the year - -
Surplus realised during the year upon disposal (35,992) -
Revaluation surplus - as at December 31 8.1 115,475 151,467

This includes Rupees 113.97 million (2023: Rupees 149.97 million) representing revaluation surplus on

buildings and balance of Rupees 1.50 million (2023: Rupees 1.50 million) on land at the time classification
of land and building as investment property.

2024 2023
Note Rupees in ('000)
Long Term Financings
Long term loan from banking Companies
National Bank of Pakistan - Term Finance 1,500,000 -
Sindh Bank Limited - Term Finance 180,096 -
9.1 1,680,096 -
Deferred mark up on long term financing 9.2 291,980 5
1,972,076 -
Less: Current maturity presented under current liabilities (12,000) -
1]9601076 o
Movement of long term loans during the year
Balance at the beginning of the year - 31,675
Financing obtained during the year - -
Transfer from short term borrowing upon restructuring 91.1 1,680,096 -
Repayment made during the year - (31,675)
Balance at the end of the year 1,680,096 -

~\~7

\



“Auedwiog ay} jo sioyoauip Buuosuods
jo seaelsenb |eucsiad pue ‘puen
peqeiepAH 9 B G doys ‘iyoeiey
jenbe;] @ yeiyeys ‘lzuepy gemen
- ¢ doys ‘|yoesey JojusD UBWAING
-} doyg ‘Iyseliey| leppes je WooIMoyS
Buipnjour Auedwon Jo aweu ayy
ul passsibas saipadold sjgeanowLL
lano uolw gog ssadny jo ableyo
abebuow sjgeynbe abieys aaisnjoxa
181} Jo Aem Aq peainoss si Aujioe) syl

‘Auedwon
ay] Jo siopalp Buuosuods jo
sasjuesenb [euosied pue uow 99
soadny Jo wexe ey 0} Auedwon
9y} JO sjesSE paxy pue jusund
aimnj pue jussaid ||e Jano abieyo
uoijeoayjodAy Bunjues 1sn ‘sioye]
‘lemieluey ‘peoy uelinN WM-6 je
pajenyis Auedwo) ay) jo uoissassod
ur Ag psumo seuep Gl ‘sjeuey
19 Buusnoo puel joslosd uo uolyiw
000'z seadny jo abebuow sjgeinba
jo fem Aq painoss si Aypoey syl

‘junowe
ueo| Jjo juswdfedss yym Buoe gzoz
‘Lo Asenuer Bujuoswwos sjuswielsul
Auspenb [enba g| ul pied aq pjnom 6zoz
‘L€ Jaquaoa(] (|1} paniode ag 0} pue ajep
Buipodas |3 psniooe dnyew seasaypp

'920¢ ‘10 Aenuep
woJd Bupuswwoo syuswieisur Aepenb
[enba gL ul pied eg ||eys juUNoWwe ueo|
2y} ‘uswsbueue Buunjonysal Jad sy

"GZ0T 1€ Jaquiada(q o'l sieak jley
pue auo jo pouad aoeib Buipnpul zZOz
‘10 AN woy jpage yum sieak jey pue
anl Jo pouad e Joj Ayjioey syl painionisal
sey Auedwop oy Jo jsenbas ay)
uo ueq ayj Jeak sy} Buung Auedwon
a2y}l Jo sjusweiinbals |eudes Bunjom
ay) 1@aw 0} swsbuele asueuly Buuunl
Jepun pauiejqo Ajleuiblio sem Ajjioe) siy |

‘JUNoWwe Ueo| JO Juauwijjelsul
19€] Yyim Buoje wns dwny ul pied aq ||BYS
pousd ainny ul penioge 8q 0} Pue 81ep
Buiuodal |3 peaniooe dnyiew sealsypp

'¥20Z ‘0¢ Jaquadag
wouy Bupuswiwos syuswyelsul Auspenb
[enba gz w pred aq |leys junowe ueo|
ay)] ‘uawsbuene Buunongses sed sy

$202 ‘1.0 AInf wouj Josye yum sieak aal
Jo pouad e 1oy Ajjioe) ayj painjonijsal sey
Auedwog ay} jo jsenbal ay) uo yueq ayl
Jeal ay) Buung ‘Aupoey soueuly abpuqg
|BJ3je|lq JBpUn pauielqo sem Ajjioe) siyl

funoag

juawAedal
jedisund jo siseq pue ainua

960°089°L
‘wnuue Jad 2oueUl ua | paywi
%E snd Jogiy yow ¢ - 960°08} painjonisey jueg  ypuis
wnuue Jad aoUeUl4 Wis| uejsiyed jo
%L snid YOgIY suywop £ - 000°00S°} peinjoruisey ueg |euonen
(000. ui seadny)
Jdaysa) Jayo
Fen A0W €202 vzoz Apoey awep yueg

yueq Jad se dn-yuep

pajiw uoneiodion saAem

Buisudwod sauedwos Bupyueq woy sjuswsabuele dn-yiew Japun pazin seoueul wig) BuoT

L6




9.2

9.2

9.2.2

10

10.1

10.2

10.3

104

Waves Corporation Limited

2024 2023
Note Rupees in ('000)

Deferred mark up on long term financing

Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Transfer upon restructuring 667,080 -
Effect of present value discounting 21 (397,453) -
Effect of unwinding of present value 24 22,353 -
Repayment made during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 291,980 -

Under terms and conditions of restructuring with National Bank of Pakistan; mark up accrued till June 30,
2024 and mark up further accrued / to be accrued shall paid along with final instalment of loan, June 30,
2029. The accrued mark up has been measured at fair value using average market borrowing rate of 3
months KIBOR plus 100 bps per annum. The difference between present value of accrued mark up and

carrying value has been recognised in income whereas unwinding of the markup has been included in
finance costs.

Under terms and conditions of restructuring with Sindh Bank Limited: mark up accrued till June 30, 2024
and mark up further accrued / to be accrued shall paid along with repayment of principal amount of loan in
quarterly instaiments commencing from January 01, 2026. The accrued mark up has been measured at fair
value using average market borrowing rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 300 bps per annum. The difference
between present value of accrued mark up and carrying value has been recognised in income whereas
unwinding of the markup has been included in finance costs.

2024 2023
Note Rupees in ("000)

Trade and Other Payables
Accrued liabilities 2,627 4,396
Due to subsidiary companies 10.1 7,158 545,507
Payable against purchase of shares 10.2 22,100 -
Payable to provident fund 6,498 1,952
Book overdraft 1,649 -
Workers' welfare fund payable 10.3 6,935 5,796
Sale tax payable 1,440 =
Other payable 10.4 28,873 28,873

77,280 586,524

This represents amount payable to subsidiary companies in connection with certain expenses incurred and
adjustments made by subsidiary company on behalf of holding company.

This represents amount payable to sponsoring shareholders of the Company against purchase of
2,000,000 ordinary shares of the Waves Home Appliances Limited.

2024 2023
Rupees in ('000)

Workers' welfare fund payable

Opening balance 5,796 -
Add: Charge for the year 1,139 5,796
6,935 5,796
Less: Payments made during - -
Closing balance 6,935 5,796

It includes provisions aggregating to Rupees 27.89 million (2023: Rupees 27.89 million) in respect of
probable loss from pending litigation of the Company against Income Tax and Sales Tax Authorities. The
above provisions have been made as per the management's best estimate against various demands raised
by the authorities that are being contested by the Company at various forums as explained in Note 13.
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2024 2023
Note Rupees in ('000)

1 Accrued Mark-up on Short Term Borrowings

Accrued mark-up on short term borrowings 5,206 301,267
12 Short Term Borrowings

From banking companies

Running finance under mark-up arrangements 121 - 1,723,953

From non -banking companies:

Demand finance 12.2 50,000 -

50,000 1,723,953

121 This represents utilised amount of short term financing facilities under mark-up arrangements availed from
various commercial banking companies aggregating to Rupees Nil (2023: Rupees 1,723 million) and carry
mark-up ranging Nil% (2023: 24.91% to 25.66%) per annum, payable quarterly in arrears. During the year
the commercial banks have restructured these utilised amount as Term Finance Facility for a tenure of up
to five and half years as disclosed in note 9.1 above and accordingly classified as long term loan.

12.2  Waves Corporation Limited (the Company") has obtained a loan of Rupees 50 million from Dawood
Equities Limited under Repo Transaction, secured against 10 million ordinary shares of Waves Home
Appliances Limited owned and held by the Company. Additionally, 1.5 million shares of Waves Home
Appliances Limited are held as margin against the transaction. The loan remains outstanding as of
reporting date, and the Company continues to monitor its obligations and collateral requirements under this

arrangement. The facility carries markup rate of 22.50% to 27% per annum and having expiry of three
months.

13 Contingencies and Commitments

13.1  Contingencies

13.1.1 The Company has filed a Constitutional petition before the Honorable Sindh High Court at Karachi,
challenging the vires of Rule 58T of the Sales Tax Special Procedure Rules relating to 2% extra sales tax
on certain home appliances. This is based on the view that the said vires are not applicable on the
Company. The case is pending before the Honorable Sindh High Court. An interim order was received in
favor of the Company. The Company is confident that no liability is expected to occur. Amount involved is
Rupees 84.80 million as of December 31, 2020 against which no provision has been made as the
Company, based on the opinion of legal advisor's advice, is confident of a favorable decision.

13.1.2 During the financial year 2014, the Company received a show cause notice from the Federal Board of
Revenue (FBR) in respect of short payment of 2% extra sales tax under the Sales Tax Procedures Rules,
2007 as amended by SRO. 896(1)/2013 dated October 04, 2013 and deduction of input tax more than the
limit defined under section 8 read with chapter IV of Sales Tax Rules, 2006. The tax authority in the said
notice raised a demand of Rupees 19.91 million and Rupees 11.15 million respectively for the period from
January 01, 2014 to September 30, 2014. The Company after consultation with its tax advisors has replied
and submitted explanation with the tax authorities along with revised workings for the apportionment of

input tax which in the case of the Company for the above period was Rupees 0.52 million. Since then, no
further action has been initiated by the tax authorities.

13.1.3 The Company had earlier received a sales tax recovery order from the sales tax authorities amounting to
Rupees 195.63 million, for the financial year ended December 31, 2010 against which the Company had
filed an appeal with the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A). CIR-A had deleted one item
while the remaining matters were set aside. Moreover, the management, based on consultation with its tax
advisor, is of the view that matter would be decided in favor of the Company. However, CIR has filed an
appeal against Company on the matters of SRO 647/2007 regarding input tax adjustments against 90%
output tax and payment of sales tax on instalment sales at the time of receipt of instalment instead at the
time when instalment sales are actually being made for which no hearing has yet taken place. Amount
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involved is Rupees 171.71 million. However, based on advice of legal consultant, management is of the
view that that no potential liability is expected to oceur.

13.1.4 Income tax assessments of the Company have been finalized up to and including the tax year 2007. The
Company had applied for Income tax refund for the tax years from 2006 to 2011. Income tax refund orders
were earlier determined for the tax years 2009, 2010 and 2011. Income tax refund was released for the tax
year 2009. However, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) amended the deemed assessed
orders under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax years from 2009 to 2012 and
raised additional income tax demand of Rupees 19.98 million. However, the Company had filed an
application for the rectification of orders after which the net tax additional demand was reduced to Rupees
2.02 million (after the adjustment of the refund of related years) under section 221 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. Appeals have been filed to Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against

these orders and the Company is hopeful that, as per advice of the legal counsel, the matter shall be
decided in favor of the Company.

13.1.5 The Company has received appellate orders for the tax years from 2009 to 2012, dated June 29, 2015,
where the CIR-A has set aside certain issues for reassessment, deleted certain items and maintained
certain disallowances. The financial impact of the items set aside for reassessment and continued
disallowances amount to Rupees 43.72 million. Appeal has been filed with Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue (ATIR) against these issues. The Company based on the merits of matters is of the view that
ultimate decisions are expected in its favor and the Company is hopeful that, as per advice of the legal
counsel, the matter shall be decided in favor of the Company. However, adequate provision is held in the
unconsolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.

13.1.6 The Finance Act, 2017 introduced a tax under section 5A of the Income Tax ordinance, 2001 on every
pubic Company other than a scheduled bank or Modaraba, that derives profit for the tax year and does not
distribute at least 40% of the after tax profit within six months of the end of said tax year through cash or
bonus issue. Under the earlier section tax was not mandatorily leviable in case the Company's reserves
were not in excess of the paid up capital (which was the case with the Company as it had accumulated
losses). Provision for the above referred tax amounting to Rupees 9.35 million has not been paid as the
Company's management is of the view that the amendment was made after the closure of Company's
financial year ended December 31, 2016 and for certain other legal reasons. The Company has filed a
Constitutional petition before the Honorable Sindh High Court at Karachi challenging the vires of Section 5A
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and a stay order has been granted against any coercive action against

the Company under the newly inserted Section 5A. The Company is hopeful that, as per advice of the legal
counsel, the matter shall be decided in favor of the Company.

13.1.7 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR), via order dated April 30, 2014, under Section 161(1)
and Section 205(3) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2014 raised a tax demand of
Rupees 0.83 million for non-deduction of advance income tax for the period from November 01, 2013 to
April 30, 2014 under section 236(G) and 236(H) of the aforesaid Ordinance. Company filed an appeal
before the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) which was remanded back to DCIR. The
Company filed an appeal against the order of CIR-A in Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), which is
pending adjudication and the Company is hopeful that, as per advice of the legal counsel, the matter shall

be decided in favor of the Company. However, adequate provision is held in the unconsolidated financial
statements in respect of the above balance.

13.1.8 During the financial year 2014, the Company received a notice by Commissioner Inland Revenue - Zone |
for selection of audit under section 214C for the tax year 2012. The Company filed an appeal against the
said notice before Honorable Lahore High Court which was decided against the Company and audit
proceedings were initiated. The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue issued an amended assessment
order under section 122(1) and 122(5) through which certain additions were made and demand order was
raised amounting to Rupees 48.10 million. Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal before
Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A), who vide his Order No. 9 dated April 04, 2019 deleted
certain additions. Being aggrieved with the order of CIR-A the Company filed an appeal before the
Honorable Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, which is pending adjudication and the Company is hopeful
that, as per advice of the legal counsel, the matter shall be decided in favor of the Company.

13.1.9 During the financial year 2014, the Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue imposed penalty vide order
dated April 27, 2014 under section 182(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 amounting Rupees 0.91

o



Waves Corporation Limited

million for the tax year 2013 for the late filling of income tax return under section 114 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001.The Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A)
against the above order. The CIR-A decided the matter against the Company vide order dated March 25,
2014. The Company filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order of
CIR-A which is pending adjudication and the Company is hopeful that, as per advice of the legal counsel,
the matter shall be decided in favor of the Company. However, adequate provision is held in the
unconsolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.

13.1.10 During the financial year 2015, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR), vide order dated April
30, 2015, under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2010, raised an
amended demand of Rupees 7.85 million after disallowing certain expenses amounting to Rupees 29.15
million. The Company filed an appeal for the rectification of order before Commissioner Inland Revenue -
Appeals (CIR-A) who vide its order dated December 30, 2015, remanded the case back to the ACIR and
directed the recalculation and apportionment of expenses as per under section 67 read with rule 13 of
Income Tax Rules 2002 which is pending adjudication and the Company is hopeful that, as per advice of
the legal counsel, the matter shall be decided in favor of the Company. However, adequate provision is
held in the unconsolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.

13.1.11 During the financial year 2017, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) amended the deemed
assessed return vide its order dated June 19, 2017 under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 for the tax year 2011. The ACIR disallowed certain expenses amounting to Rupees 9.58 million and
raised the additional income tax demand of Rupees 1.02 million. The Company filed an appeal before the
Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A). The CIR-A vide order No. 19 dated September 21, 2020
decided the appeal partially in favor of the Company by deleting the additions amounting to Rupees 4.62
million under the head financial charges and confirmed the remaining addition. Furthermore, The
Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) directed the ACIR to verify the contention regarding
refund adjustment of Rupees 1.02 million if still available to the Company for adjustment in the current year.
Being aggrieved with of the CIR-A order, the Company preferred an appeal before the Honorable Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore, which is still pending for adjudication and the Company is hopeful that, as
per advice of the legal counsel, the matter shall be decided in favor of the Company. However, adequate
provision is held in the unconsolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.

13.1.12 During the financial year 2012, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued an order dated
April 26, 2012 under Rule 2(3A) of the Sales Tax Special Procedures (Withholding) Rules, 2007, citing the
company's non-deduction and non-payment of withholding sales tax on advertisement services for the tax
period 2009-10, assessing a total amount of Rupees. 9.64 million (including withholding tax of Rupees 9.34
million and default surcharge). During adjudication, the company provided evidence that Rupees 6.31
million had already been deposited by service providers, but the remaining tax of Rupees 3.03 million could
not be verified due to insufficient documentation. The company has been ordered to deposit the unverified
amount along with applicable default surcharge and penalty under Section 11(2), 36(2), 34, and 33(5) of the
Sales Tax Act, 1990. The Company being aggrieved, filed the appeal before Commissioner Inland
Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) who upheld the assessment order issued by DCIR. Subsequently, company
appealed before the Appellate Tribunal of Inland Revenue which is pending adjudication and the Company
s hopeful that, as per advice of the legal counsel, the matter shall be decided in favor of the Company.

13.1.13 During the financial year 2018, the Company received a show cause notice issued by Deputy
Commissioner Inland Revenue under section 161 for the tax year 2017 on non deduction of withholding tax
amounting to Rupees 6.03 million on payments against purchase of plant and machinery, packing material
and other miscellaneous payments. The Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue -
Appeals (CIR-A) where the case was remanded back to the Department. Being aggrieved, the Company
filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) which is pending adjudication and the

Company is hopeful that, as per advice of the legal counsel, the matter shall be decided in favor of the
Company.

13.1.14 During the financial year 2018, the Taxation Officer, after conducting audit under Section 177 of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) for the tax year 2014, passed an amended assessment order under
section 122 of the Ordinance raising tax demands of Rupees 25.29 million alleging that the Company
suppressed its sales and adjusted inadmissible expenses. Being aggrieved, the Company has filed appeal
before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A). CIR-A vide order, deleted certain additions

amounting to Rupees 80 million and the rest of the additions amounting to Rupees 26 million were
confirmed.
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Hence there is no outstanding amount payable against the Company. The department filed an appeal
before Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) which is pending for adjudication and the Company is hopeful
that, as per advice of the legal counsel, the matter shall be decided in favor of the Company.

13.1.15 During the financial year 2016, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue raised an order under section

161/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for non-deduction of tax amounting Rupees 6.45 million and
Rupees 3.76 million for tax years 2009 and 2010 respectively. The Company filed an appeal before the
Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) which was decided against the Company. The Company
filed an appeal against the order of CIR-A in Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), which is pending

for adjudication. However, adequate provision is held in the unconsolidated financial statements in respect
of the above balance.

13.1.16 Deputy Commissioner of Inland Revenue (DCIR).imposed a penalty under Section 182(1)(1A) of the

Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, amounting to Rupees 1.48 million for the periods from July 2015 to February
2016 owing to the late filing of monthly withholding statements under Section 165 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. The Company contested the penalty and filed an appeal before the Commissioner of
Inland Revenue (Appeals) (CIR - A). The CIR(A) remanded back the case to DCIR to impose a reduced

penalty of Rupees 10,000 for each month, considering that the delay in filing of withholding statements was
not intentional and no revenue loss was involved.

Subsequently, the Department filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal of Inland Revenue (ATIR)
against the decision of the CIR(A). This appeal is currently pending for a hearing. Given the precedent set
by the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore and the learned Tribunal, as well as the fact that the delay was

unintentional and no revenue loss occurred, the Company is hopeful that, as per advice of the legal
counsel, the matter shall be decided in favor of the Company.

13.1.17 Based on the legal opinion, due to the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction (the

13.2

13.241

Scheme); the routing of transactions in order to pass on the impact of sales tax to subsidiary company is in
line with the Scheme sanctioned by the Honorable Court. Therefore, there will be no non-compliance at

this point of time, however, at any stage if there will be negative inference; then the same will be dealt
accordingly.

Commitments

As at reporting date, aggregate credit limits (funded and unfunded facilities) amounting to Rupees Nil (2023:
Rupees 1.047 million) from commercial banks remain unutilized.

13.2.2 There are no other material commitments to report as at reporting date (2023: Nil).
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2024 2023
Rupees in ('000)
Property
Operating fixed assets - Tangible
Freehold land
Balance at the beginning of the year - 10,000
Disposed off during the year - (10,000)

Balance at the end of the year

As of reporting date, land sold during the financial year ended December 31, 2023 to Waves Home
Appliances Limited, a subsidiary company, has not yet been transferred neither in name of the subsidiary

company nor in the name of ultimate buyer upon execution of sale of property by the Waves Home
Appliances Limited.

2024 2023
Note Rupees in ('000)

Investment Property '
Balance as at January 01 250,000 300,480
Transferred from inventories 18 3,126,042 -
Disposed off during the period 15.2 (60,000) =

3,316,042 300,480
Fair value gain / (loss) 21 " 459,390 (50,480)
Balance as at December 31 15.4 3,775,432 250,000

The Company has rented out the owned shops to its subsidiary Company (Waves Marketplace Limited).
Rental income of Rupees 2.48 million (2023 Rupees 3.36 million) has been recognized on the above

investment properties during the year. Agreements for the rental arrangements are valid up to 1 year and
carries options for renewable.

During the year, the Company has disposed off a property at its carrying value of Rupees 60 million. As a
result, a revaluation surplus of Rupees 35.99 million has been transferred to retained earnings upon disposal
of investment property. Revaluation surplus of Rupees 113.97 million as of December 31, 2024 (2023;
Rupees 149.87 million) pertaining to remaining properties continues to be maintained in the "Surplus on
Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment" in Note 8 to these unconsolidated financial statements.

As of the reporting date, the legal ownership of the investment property sold during the financial year ended
December 31, 2024, has not yet been transferred in the name of the buyer.

As at reporting date; investment property having fair value of Rupees 3,775.432 million (2023: Rupees
250.00 million) whereas forced sale value of these properties amounting to Rupees 3,209.117 million (2023:
Rupees 212.50 million). Fair value gain of Rupees 459.390 million (2023: 50.48 million) based on the fair

market value of investment property determined on December 31, 2024 have been recognised in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss as referred to in note 21.

The fair value of investment properties as of December 31, 2024 has been determined by an external
independent property valuer Unicorn International Surveyors based on independent inquiries from active
local realtors, recent experience in the location and the records of the valuer. The fair value measurement of

the investment property had been categorized as a level 3 fair value based on the input to the valuation
technique used.
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15.6 Particulars of immovable property in the name of Company are as follows:

L 9 Usage of immovable property Totalarea Covered area
ocation
(Marlas) (Square Feet)

Shop No.l, Sub-Plot Nos. Sb-3/34 Held for capital appreciation and 1.29 350
&35 of Plot Nos.34 & 35, Ground generating rental income

Floor, Suleman Centre, Daud Pota

Road, Saddar Bazar, Karachi.

Shop Bearing Survey No. 13, Held for capital appreciation and 6.98 1,899
Sheet No. S.B-7, (Old Survey No. generating rental income

G-/1176), Saddar Bazar Quarters,

Zebunissa Street, Karachi.

9-KM, Hanjarwal, Multan Road, Held for capital appreciation and 61.90 340,134
Lahore. generating rental income
2024 2023
Note Rupees in ("000)

16 Investment in Subsidiaries

Waves Marketplace limited

50,000,000 (2023: 50,000,000) fully paid ordinary

shares of Rupees 10 each 16.1 500,000 500,000
Equity held: 100% (2023: 100%)

Chief Executive Officer - Moazzam Ahmad Khan

Waves Builders and Developers (Private) Limited

100,000 (2023: 100,000) fully paid ordinary

shares of Rupees 10 each 16.2 1,000 1,000
Equity held: 100% (2023: 100%)

Chief Executive Officer - Moazzam Ahmad Khan

Waves Home Appliance Limited

147,564,300 (2023: 199,724,956) fully paid ordinary

shares of Rupees 10 each 16.3 & 16.4 3,498,211 4,769,481
Equity held: 55.08% (2023: 74.56%)

Chief Executive Officer - Haroon Ahmad Khan

3,999,211 5,270,481

16.1  Waves Marketplace Limited (formerly, Electronics Marketing Company (Private) Limited), a wholly owned
subsidiary, was incorporated on September 09, 2016. The principal activity of the subsidiary Company is to
carry out distribution / wholesales and retail business of all kinds of electronic appliances, its components and

accessories etc. The registered office of the subsidiary Company is located at 9-Km Multan Road, Hanjarwal,
Lahore, Punjab.

16.2  Waves Builders and Developers (Private) Limited (formerly, Waves Marketing (Private) Limited) is a private
limited company which was incorporated on April 10, 2017 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984
(Now the Companies Act, 2017). The registered office of the company is located at 15/3 A Model Town,
Lahore. The principal activity of the company is real estate development.

16.3 Waves Home Appliances Limited (Formerly, Samin Textiles Limited) was incorporated in Pakistan on
November 27, 1989 as a public limited company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies
Act, 2017). The registered office of the Company is situated at 8.7 KM Multan Road Hanjarwal Lahore. The
Company is currently listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The principal business of the Company is
manufacturing, trading, import and export of home appliances.

16.4 During the year, the Company has divested its 20.22% equity investment in Waves Home Appliances
Limited, comprising 54.16 million shares carried at cost for a total consideration of Rupees 523.66 million. As
aresult, a loss on disposal of Rupees 769.71 million has been recognised in statement of profit or loss.
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The management understands that share price of the subsidiary company on Pakistan Stock Exchange is
lower than its realistic fair value determined on the basis of future projections of the subsidiary company.
Moreover, market value will revert to its actual fair value as this reduction in price is temporary and does not
reflect actual fair value of the shares of the subsidiary company. Accordingly, the management is of the view,
on the basis of future financial projections, the fair value of investment is far more than the carrying value and
no impairment against the carrying value of investment is required to be made.

16.5 The Company has obtained financing facility of Rupees 50.00 million from Dawood Equities Limited against
pledge of 10.00 million ordinary shares of Waves Home Appliances Limited owned and held by the

Company.
2024 2023
Note Rupees in ('000)
17 Long Term Receivables
Receivable from a subsidiary company 2,000,000 1,926,938

Less: Current portion

2,000,000 1,926,938

171 Movement of long term receivables

Carrying value as at January 01 1,926,938 1,746,083
Unwinding of long term receivables to subsidiary 17.3 73,062 180,855
Carrying value as at December 31 2,000,000 1,926 938

17.2  As per scheme of arrangement for the demerger of Waves Home Appliances Limited (the "WHAL"), the
Company is entitied to receive Rupees 2,000 million from the WHAL within two years of the sanction of the
scheme, i.e. May 27, 2024. During the year, the shareholders of the Company in their meeting held on April
29, 2024 has extended recovery of above long term receivables for a period of two years, i.e. May 27, 2026

subject to chargeability of interest rate of 0.1% above average borrowing costs of the Company or KIBOR for
relevant period whichever is higher.

17.3  This represents unwinding of long term receivables discounted at average borrowing cost of the Company,

i.e. 9.87% per annum and has been accounted for as part of consideration paid under the Scheme of
Arrangement.

2024 2023
Rupees in ('000)

17.4 Receivable from a subsidiary company is as under:

Gross due amount 2,000,000 1,926,938

Past due amount
Provision

Reversal of provision
Written off -

Net amount due 2,000,000 1,926,938

Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year 2,000,000 1,926,938

17.5 Age analysis of amount due from related party

Amount not past due 2,000,000 1,926,938
Amount past due:

1-30

31-60 days
61-90 days
91-365 days
Over 365 days

Total gross amount due 2,000,000 1,926,938
TLo
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2024 2023
Note Rupees in ('000)

Inventories
Under developed properties
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,126,042 2,705,294
Add: Costs incurred during the year 18.3 - 420,748
Less: Transferred to Investment property (3,126,042) -
Balance at end of the year - 3,126,042

This represents inventories being developed by the Company for the purposes of sale upon completion of the
project. In November 2021, the Board decided that the freehold land on which existing manufacturing facility
of the WCL is located shall be used for real estate project / apartment complex.

This includes borrowing costs of Rupees Nil (2023: Rupees 351.67 million) and amount of Rupees Nil (2023:
Rupees 69.069 million) incurred in connection with the project development. The activities for development of
real state project remain inactive, therefore, borrowing costs for the year has been charged to statement of
profit or loss. As the board of the director of the company have decided to classify the projects as investment
property owing to delay in implementation of the project development for an indefinite period.

2024 2023
Note Rupees in ('000)
Advances and Other Receivables
Due from subsidiary companies 19.1 464,187 370,879
Due from broker 17,554 -
481,741 370,879
Due from subsidiary companies
Waves Marketplace Limited 19.2 463,261 370,879
Waves Home Appliances Limited 926 -
464,187 370,879
Due from Waves Marketplace Limited
Receivable as at January 01 158,730 191,036
Receivable against management fee 3,480 -
Amount advanced / adjusted during the year 2,505 (32,306)
Receivable as at December 31 164,715 158,730
Accrued markup as at January 01 212,149 134,879
Markup for the year 86,397 77,270
Accrued markup as at December 31 298,546 212,149
19.2.1 463,261 370,879

19.2.1 This represents amounts due on account of expenses incurred on behalf of Waves Marketplace Limited and

other receivables. Mark-up has been charged at average borrowing cost of the Company.
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19.2.2 Details of amount due from related

parties as at reporting date was as
Gross amount due

Past due amount

Amount not past due

Provision for doubtful receivables

Reversal of provision of doubtful receivables
Amount written off

Net amount

Maximum amount outstanding at any time
during the year

19.2.3 Age analysis of amount due from related

20

201

parties:

Amount not past due
Amount past due

1-30 days

31-60 days

61-90 days

91-365 days

365 days

Total

Cash and Bank Balances

Cash in hand
Cash at bank
- Current accounts
- Saving accounts

These carry profits at the rates ranging from 19% to 20.5% (2023

Waves Home Appliances
Limited

Waves Corporation Limited

Waves Marketplace Limited

2024 2023
Rupees in ('000)

2024

2023

Rupees in ('000)

926 - 459,781 370,579

- = 372,574 292,146
926 = 87,207 78,433
926 = 459,781 370,579
926 = 459,781 370,579

Waves Home Appliances
Limited

Waves Marketplace Limited

2024 2023
Rupees in ('000)

2024

2023

Rupees in ('000)

926 E 87,207 78,433
- - - 840
- = 6,895 1,400
- - 365,679 289,906
926 Z 459,781 370,579
2024 2023

Note

201

Rupees in ('000)

11,657 19,487

6,275 2,375
17,932 21,862
17,932 21,862

:13.5% to 19.5%) per annum.
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2024 2023
Note Rupees in ('000)
Other Income
Income from financial instruments
Mark-up on amount due from subsidiary company 331,198 77,271
Unwinding of long term receivables from subsidiary 17 73,062 180,855
Effect of present value discounting of accrued mark up 9.2 397,453 -
Income from non-financial instruments
Credit balance written back - 37,224
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets - 22,580
Management fee 9,000 -
Fair value gain on investment property 459,390 -
Rental income 2,480 3,360
Amortization of deferred income - 140
1,272,583 321,430

This represents mark-up charged on the amount due from the subsidiary company at an average quarterly
borrowing rate of the Company.

2024 2023
Note Rupees in ("000)

Administrative and General Expenses
Salaries wages and other benefits 221 40,551 44328
Legal and professional 1,224 233
Fees and subscription 1,345 1,846
Auditors' remuneration 22.2 2,370 4,815

45,490 51,222

Salaries, wages and other benefits include staff retirement benefits of Rupees 4.545 million (2023: Rupees
5.18 million).

2024 2023
Rupees in ('000)

Auditors' remuneration

Rizwan & Company

Statutory audit fee 1,200 3,718

Audit fee for consolidated financial statements 300

Fee for the review of interim financial information 400 .

Review of statement of compliance and other certifications 350 -

Out of pocket expenses 120 467

Awais Haider Nauman Liaquat

Fee for the review of interim financial information - 513

Out of pocket expenses - 117

2,370 4,815

Other Operating Expenses

Loss on disposal of investment in subsidiary 772,140 -

Fair value loss in investment property - 50,480

Workers' welfare fund 1,139 5,796
773,279 56,276




Waves Corporation Limited

2024 2023
Note Rupees in ("000)
24 Finance Costs
Markup on:
- Long term financing 365,812 -
- Short term borrowings 8,696 54,355
Effect of unwinding of accrued mark up 9.2 22,353 -
Bank charges and commission - 3
396,861 54,358
25 Levies
Minimum tax - 1,732
Prior period (4,878) 762
(4,878) 2494

25.1 The Company's provision for taxation in based on the consolidated results of the Group under Section 59AA
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 read with Section 598 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which
represents minimum tax under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. This represents minimum tax on sale of goods
under Section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 representing levy in terms of requirements of
interpretation issued by International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee (IFRIC) 21 / International
Accounting Standard 37, Provision, contingent liabilities and contingent assets.

2024 2023
Rupees in ('000)

26 Income Tax Expense

Current tax
- For the year
- Prior years

- 8,891
- 8,891

Deferred tax

26.1 The Company's provision for taxation in based on the consolidated results of the Group under Section 59AA
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 read with Section 598 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which
represents minimum tax under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Current year's provision for taxation has been
charged on taxable income by applying income tax rates applicable to companies. Owing to application of
minimum tax on sale of goods under Section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001; the amount has been
classified as levy in terms of requirements of interpretation issued by International Financial Reporting

Interpretation Committee (IFRIC) 21 / International Accounting Standard 37, Provision, contingent liabilities
and contingent assets.

27 Earnings Per Share - Basic and Diluted
27.1 Basic earnings per share

The calculation of earnings per share (basic and diluted) is based on earnings attributable to the owners of
ordinary shares of the Company.

2024 2023
Rupees in ('000)

Profit for the year 61,831 148,186

e
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2024 2023
Number of shares in ('000)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 281,406 281,406

Rupees

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 0.22 0.53

2024 2023
Number of shares in ('000)

27.1.1 Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Issued ordinary shares at January 01 281,406 281,406
Issued during the year - -
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares at December 31 281,406 281,406

27.2 Diluted earnings per share

No figures for diluted earnings per share have been presented as the Company has not issued any
instruments carrying options which would have an impact on earnings per share when exercised.

o2
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Waves Corporation Limited

29 Provident Fund

29.1 The Company operates approved contributory provident fund for all the employees eligible under the scheme.
Till 2018, the Company was operating two separate provident funds in the name of Singer Pakistan Limited and
Cool Industries (Private) Limited but with effect from January 01, 2019, the Company has merged its funds.

29.2 The Company has not complied with the provisions of Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules
formulated thereunder.

30 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

The aggregate amounts charged in the unconsolidated financial statements in respect of remuneration,
including all benefits, to the Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company are as follows:

Chief Executive Director Executives
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Rupees ('000)

Managerial remuneration 12,600 16,691 4,500 4,909 12,036 15,832
Contribution to provident fund. 1,050 1,390 375 409 796 1,085
House rent allowance - - - - 3,914 4,000
Medical allowance 1,260 1,669 450 491 979 1,211

14,910 19,750 5,325 5,809 17,725 22,128
Number of persons 1 1 1 1 6 6

30.1 In addition to the above, Directors and certain Executives are provided with free use of the Company maintained
vehicles, club facility and certain items of furniture and fixtures in accordance with their entittement. The
Company also makes contributions based on actuarial calculations to gratuity and pension funds.

30.2 The aggregate amount charged in the unconsolidated financial statements for payments on account of the
meeting fee of non-executive directors was Rupees Nil (2023: Rupees 0.15 million).

3 Related Party Transactions and Balances

311 The related parties comprise the companies under common control, the companies where key management
personnel have control, the directors of the Company and the key management personnel of the Company.
Detail of related parties (with whom the Company has transacted) along with relationship and transactions with
related parties, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as

follows:

Number of
Name of related party Relationship shared held
Waves Home Appliances Limited Subsidiary 145,564,300
Waves Marketplace Limited Wholly owned subsidiary 50,000,000
Waves Builders and Developers (Private)
Limited Wholly owned subsidiary 100,000
Employee's Provident Fund Post employee contribution plan N/A
Haroon Ahmad Khan Chief Executive / Sponsor 93,640,286
Nighat Haroon Khan Director / Sponsor 17,332,411
Moazzam Ahmad Khan Director 1,825
Hamza Ahmad Khan Director 1,614,134
Tajamal Hussain Bokharee Director 500
Khalid Azim Director 50
Muhammad Zafar Hussain Director 1,705
Arslan Shahid Butt Key management personnel 5,000

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and

controlling the activities of the entity. The Company considers all members of their management team, including
Chief Executive Officer and Directors to be its key management personnel.

31.2 Transactions with related parties

Amounts due from related parties are shown under advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Tl
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note 19 and remuneration of directors and key management personnel note 30. Other significant transactions
with related parties are as follows:

2024 2023
Relationship Nature of transactions Rupees in ('000)
Subsidiaries Finance costs - 351,679
Funds received on behalf 121,146 7,129
Funds provided on behalf 644,977 4,995
Land transferred at fair value - 32,580
Mark-up income 331,200 77,271
Rental income 2,480 3,360
Management fee 9,000 -
Capital expenditure incurred on behalf
of company - 69,069
Employee's Provident Fund Contribution for the year 2,273 1,799
Key management personnel Meeting fee - 150
Purchase of shares 22,100 -

32 Financial Instruments

The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

This note presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risks, the Company's

objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's management of
capital.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company’s risk

management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk
management palicies.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to
develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks.

32.1 Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations. To manage credit risk, the Company maintains procedures covering the
application for credit approvals, granting and renewal of counterparty limits and monitoring of exposures against

these limits. As part of these processes the financial viability of all counterparties is regularly monitored and
assessed.

32.1.1 Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date is:

2024 2023
Rupees in ('000)
Long term receivables 2,000,000 1,926,938
Due from subsidiary companies 464,187 370,879
Due from broker 17,554 -
Accrued profit on long term receivables 244,803 -
Bank balances 17,932 19,487

2,744,476 2,317,304

N




Waves Corporation Limited

32.1.2 Concentration of credit risk

The Company identifies concentrations of credit risk by reference to type of counter party. Maximum exposure
to credit risk by type of counterparty is as follows:

2024 2023
Rupees in ('000)
Long term receivables 2,000,000 1,926,938
Due from subsidiary companies 464,187 370,879
Due from broker 17,554 -
Accrued profit on long term receivables 244803 -
Bank balances 17,932 21,862

2,744,476 2,319,679

32.1.3 Credit quality and impairment
Long term receivables and due from subsidiary companies

Credit quality of financial assets is assessed by reference to external credit ratings, where available, or to
historical information about counterparty default rates. All counterparties, with the exception of customers, have
external credit ratings determined by various credit rating agencies. Out of total amount of Rupees 2,744.476
million (2023: 2,319.679 million); aggregate amount of Rupees 2,708.990 million (2023: Rupees 2.297.817
million) are receivable from subsidiary companies, therefore, there is no risk of non-recovery of the amount.

Counterparties with external credit ratings

These include banking companies and financial institutions. These counterparties have reasonably high credit
ratings as determined by various credit rating agencies. Due to long standing business relationships with these
counterparties and considering their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-performance

by these counterparties on their obligations to the Company. Following are the credit ratings of counterparties
with external credit ratings:

Banks Rating Rating 2024 | | 2023
Short term|| Long term || Agency Rupees in (‘000)
AlBaraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited A-1 A+ VIS 233 231
Allied Bank Limited A1+ AAA PACRA - 83
Askari Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 135 135
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 896 169
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited A1 AA- PACRA 1 1
The Bank of Khyber A1 A+ PACRA 57 552
The Bank of Punjab A1+ AA+ PACRA 607 -
Dubai Islamic Bank Limited A-1+ AA VIS - 75
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ AA PACRA 3,558 3,500
Finca Microfinance Bank Limited A3 BBB+ PACRA 108 169
Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS 1,751 3,792
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 355 356
JS Bank Limited Al+ AA PACRA - 4
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 1,849 1,839
Meezan Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS - 4,940
National Bank Of Pakistan Al+ AAA PACRA 15 544
Samba Bank Limited A-1 AA VIS - 81
Summit Bank Limited A-3 BBB- VIS 6,275 2,374
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Al+ AAA PACRA 840 1,090
United Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS 1,252 1,068
Industrial Commercial Bank of China - A S&P - 859
17,932 21,862

L
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets, or that such obligations will
have to be settled in a manner unfavorable to the Company. Management closely monitors the Company’s
liquidity and cash flow position. This includes maintenance of financial position liquidity ratios, debtors and

creditors concentration both in terms of the overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large
individual customers.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

32.2.1 Exposure to liquidity risk

(a) Contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments

323

The following are the remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts are grossed and
undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

2024
Carrying Less than | Between 1 Above 5
amount |Contractua 1 year to 5 years years
Rupees in ('000)

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Long term financings 1,680,096 (1,680,096) (12,000) (1,668,096) -
Deferred mark up on long term financing 291,980 - - (291,980) -
Trade and other payables 70,345 (70,345) (70,345) - -
Accrued mark-up on short term borrowing 5,206 (5,206) (5,206) - -
Short term borrowings 50,000 (50,000) (50,000) - -
2,097,627 (1,805,647)  (137,551) (1,960,076) -
2023

Carrying | Contractual | Lessthan1 | Between 1 Above 5

amount cash flows year to 5 years years
Rupees in ('000)

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 580,728 (580,728) (580,728) - B
Accrued mark-up on short term borrowing 301,267 (301,267) (301,267) - -
Short term borrowings 1,723,953 (1,723,953) (1,723,953) - -

2,605,948 (2,605,948) (2,605,948) - -

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing return. As at December 31, 2024; the Company is not exposed to market risk.

32.3.1 Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in
which advances, sales and purchases and bank balances are denominated and the respective functional
currency of the Company. The functional currency of the Company is Pak Rupee. The currency in which these

transactions are primarily denominated is US dollar. The Company is not exposed to currency risk as at
December 31, 2024.

32.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in interest rates. Sensitivity to interest rate risk arises from mismatch of financial assets and financial
liabilities that mature or re-price in a given period.

\
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At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's significant interest bearing financial instruments
were as follows:

Carrying amount
2024 % 2023
Financial liabilities: Rupees in ('000)
Fixed rate instruments - -
Variable rate instruments
Long term financing 1,680,096 -
Short term borrowings 50,000 1,723,953

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and
loss. Therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect statement of profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 150 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have (decreased)/ increased profit for
the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign
currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2024.

Changes in Effects on
interest rate profit

Rupees in
% ('000)
Cash flow sensitivity-fixed rate
Long term financing 2024 +1.50 25,201
-1.5 (25,201)
2023 +1.50 -
-1.5 -
Short term borrowings 2024 +1.50 750
-1.5 (750)
2023 +1.50 25,859
-1.5 (25,859)
Due to subsidiary companies 2024 +1.50 107
-1.5 (107)
2023 +1.50 8,183
-1.5 (8,183)

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on loss for the year and assets /
liabilities of the Company.

The Company manages these mismatches through risk management strategies where significant changes in
gap position can be adjusted. The Company's significant borrowings are based on variable rate pricing that is
mostly dependent on Karachi Inter Bank Offer Rate ("KIBOR") as indicated in respective notes.

32.3.3 Price risk

324

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices, other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk, whether those

changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all
similar financial instruments trading in market.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at the fair value of consideration paid or

received, net of transaction costs as appropriate, and subsequently carried at fair value or amortized cost, as
indicated in the tables below.

S Vaa



Waves Corporation Limited

The financial assets and liabilities are presented by class in the tables below at their carrying values, which

generally approximate to the fair values.

Measured | Fairvalue | Fairvalue
at through theough
Financial assets and liabilities : . other Total
amortised | profit or comprehen-
cost loss sive Income
Rupees in ('000)
December 31, 2024
Long term receivables 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
Due from subsidiary companies 464,187 - - 464,187
Due from broker 17,554 - - 17,554
Accrued profit on long term receivables 244,803 - - 244,803
Bank balances 17,932 - - 17,932
Total Financial assets 2,744 476 - - 2,744,476
Non financial assets 7,174,643
Total assets 10,519,119
Financial
liabilities Yo
Rupees in ("000)
December 31, 2024
Financial liabilities
Long term financings 1,680,096 1,680,096
Deferred mark up on long term financing 291,980 291,980
Trade and other payables 75,551 75,551
Short term borrowings 50,000 50,000
Accrued mark-up on short term borrowings 5,206 5,206
Unpaid dividend 1,179 1,179
Total Financial liabilities 2,104,012
Non financial liabilities 1,729
Total liabilities 2,105,741
Measured | Fair value Fair value
; : el . through other
Financial assets and liabilities at amortised | through comprehen.- Total
cost profitorloss | e NCome
Rupees in ('000)
December 31, 2023
Long term receivables 1,926,938 - - 1,926,938
Due from subsidiary companies 370,879 - - 370,879
Bank balances 21,862 - - 21,862
Total Financial assets 2,319,679 - - 2,319,679

Non financial assets
Total assets

December 31, 2023

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

Short term borrowings

Accrued mark up on short term borrowings
Unpaid dividend

Total financial liabilities

Non financial liabilities

Total liabilities

8

646,523
10,966,202

Financial
liabilities

Total

Rupees in ("000)

334,536
1,723,953
301,267
1,179

334,536
1,723,953
301,267
1,179
2,360,935
253,720

—_—

2,614,655

W2
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Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

As at reporting date, the Company has following item to report in these levels:

Recurring fair value measurements

| Levell [ Level2 | Level3 | Total
Rupees in ('000)

December 31, 2024
Non financial assets

Investment property - 3,775,432 L. 3,775,432

December 31, 2023
Non financial assets

Investment property - 250,000 - 250,000

Capital management

The Board's policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain the future development of its business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on

capital employed, which the Company defines as operating income divided by total capital employed. The Board
of Directors also monitors the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are:

(i) To safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

(ii) To provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may, for example,
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Neither there were any changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the year nor the
Company is subject to externally imposed capital requirements, except those, related to maintenance of debt
covenants, commonly imposed by the providers of debt finance.

2024 2023
The debt to equity ratios were as follows: (Rupees in '000)
Total debt 2,022,076 1,723,953
Total equity 8,413,378 8,351,547
Total equity and debt 10,435,454 10,075,500
Debt to equity ratio 19% 17%

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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2024 2023
(Number)
33  Number of Employees
The Company has employed following number of persons:
Number of employees as at December 31 9 9
Average number of employees during the year 9 9

34  Corresponding Figures

The corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, for the
purposes of comparison and better presentation. However, no significant reclassification has been made.

35  General
35.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees, unless otherwise stated.
36  Date of Authorisation

These financial statements have been authorised for issue by Board of Directors of the Company on
07 April 2025

A

—  Chief Executive - Chief Financial Officer Director



S buotone iy k3.2

UV :,»’5 yrdvy

L A AL L8 S it sl AL Sy K S & s SE

S A G 2 3L U Sy L Sl ;QUQ@:GB e

S gulg une SIS tun St W&A;Léyfw"véﬁmuj NI OIS,
e =B ISL¥

SN IS L L b e s St s ol e B2

ol s 31 3l 2SI e UASI Y I

L asle 5 G B b e Ll L L BTL STl ST Chsrl s/t



-;);)A;«JlgU/L/Cl:"»;'.I,J_/(d/lgcé?__/qb*r/:l,)/;ﬂtK@Lk’f.f*e&g/

L L L eriblebib i i b Ui SIS e b bl 23 B SE T  Pips S brL &
<u3~:/§")43.£d/5 Jal:W/)'otuﬁﬁ(f'{ééaw&;ﬁ'ﬁk&bu Kd}’ G'fébu g Lﬁu:/«?{.l,u’/»é ] &jbéd’{ﬁ.

JL»W_,./VMJ,};"W/‘J%LJ{

e b E et gL G RE A Pl S0 s8 - e B L st 56T s (S e st 013
1.;«u,1/.Kjfciéd'{éimwu’g-igﬁdifkéixfﬁdk»uﬁfu’{u{%lgt@yUL»“wug_é,wL;,d,@,,gﬂ?b;//ujwrgéd{
LS oL L Lo st s ol Lol st g K § e SIS

s
Plop] LJ%‘(LLZQIJJJ@MLJ&&;fu”ffu,é_/fjﬂ I I KAL G VUi e CPlosir sl 14 715
_ELSE IS sns I L T I TGt s St Vo RS S e & S s

& hels

g L SR L e B il (Bt AT UG s Sloczrn by gl n Qe o oty
G L e e S e L 12l il e

IS L Lare P Dless oS G C e b e G st g L

el e dpn
,,;}(_u@m,ruf{[f}éuijuﬂ!?J{ﬂ:;;{é}afz‘j{f;/ﬁﬁgﬁvfumw!Cf“ d{9d/,/¢,¢u6/!}41,!uiy(§r;u&;gz»&"

i

G Jla /1K a1
Sz eSS Qe S 1AL & bbb KL 130103 2 Yl s P G0  eg hL Jr10
e bt bt L b b £ Cbe 260U S5

YR -l %

-9C%L&§gcéw5QW!rd/K/I:ML.;L*J'mk'@%,ﬁu:;/géu:‘/uémg@w%’w:d{

JEAL Uy s 5Assk

ISV A 2 S e ot e (S Aer E 1 e L st p i S St 31 £ P s Bt muimd - $ink
e L LS e K Ll e

e S Sl At iec o f VL 12 P\ L U s BL 2 1Sy S

1318 3563 e TS et SSo Bty Bt P S b ot £ S e sl bl 2 13t S S8
-+J@Q}J}bffd{éj.éatuﬁgotuﬁLbLnuﬁ;‘:ﬁLd}AJU}J LA

i B IS L Sl K o St G 31 W 83 S 385 E S S St e JESE sy
-c.tgl:/



Bl B e
c.i/d/&MJ/ﬁ')uiotgdzK/u/’/d/lg,;;f@d//k"’»Lwiuﬂguj/{j/;UVJ}’(}L/&MGLGDZ-%d/ dz@&@‘;éﬁéauwg}u{y&/g
Sl B2y AL AL e L 10L B SR Sl P 2 50K QU - U (e ol

AL e Gasit G NS o A s et b b G S

s b b

LA L Ul ETE 6 AL Sl S mu»Cc,L,b;jf&k;‘t/d/,;gfaw*&ﬂi%&/f}/&_/ e Gl zbanil B 1§
IS AL G Kt 2 e BNl oS B S E T it e £ AL L A e S RS st
EIEL 6P 5L Fobas ol S LI e oot PSS

st PSS BB # 36 E Pl S S S p 1y L L s fe Snilit el sl bos k3
R0, 'Luﬁlﬁd/,_)’“ SEMulrL s = jr_ﬂft‘_di):llgJujul:?l;l.?./L'/lf/-c/)kfguﬁ&;’/u:gi/guguﬂ"/ujéu'lc,_.jl?d/ 3
rw,tyKu,ﬁ,uuugﬁunﬁ-%tgmanéu /_étﬁJuv,if udua_wﬂjf&{wﬂuﬁi G 02396 e WIS
-%tgdw/c»u“uyb@/utuiufcub|J;,1?|,é|(|,74~|_CCnuﬁ;gJ(_u£é)mui/‘dﬂ,ub/

il mlE

e RIS St SIS feede Pt b Qe SURS AL G i e GOt L S L N T
e en PSS e L1pL e A S st 05 K;tggu:fub/._fkd/wwwﬁdﬁf

Jrigry

Vi€l L3l bl Ul 0 I L L S AR W iene 5P L P i e T e 1AL
—c e d»Vu“rKngwde,c.u'{ St 3 B 2l Sn ol £ Ui SrerSle el

SHIL L nailiize Fo St ol in 23ipberfUrt et e (/G en 0 Jﬂ”d/;q}d/u”zﬂéuﬂtd/u"/ﬁulbidf
S L kS Bl 2

YA Oy
¢/’ foc,é.)/}.‘fu‘:ﬂ;/)’)ﬁﬁ}gf’))’/ﬂu:]U'-‘L PSS FGWIGEL bl S 3o sk 6 b ot G
LIS S sbend Lo IS i

L4508
4./(5&{& WJ}'JJ}JJ}J&U”C’LL}/.«J}/’Jﬁ.u'//(f}g'/}'}/ﬁ/..«fv:(dfcj_éu?a(/ JﬂJM}“’A'JUUW'JbrL‘f
_;t?L{uy.m;Lgyﬁj@cai_);«/wu,/.:dg‘u:uszu{ﬂ“;ufrvf9d/;/,- gt

L’Lgléjz'}z%/]))’/é/&WéU)t’g!;d/'ﬁfu'/“ﬁjé/Jﬁ:ﬁu{@éuﬁiu’@czlgw?'.I,Q)ddg'//],Lfi”:bﬁé/uff/éjguicrd/&{c,»up‘if(

-skthtte

L5 I IIIRIIDD)
uﬁilﬁ:’t&,ub*u"’fu{tumé_ Lty )7!Kuu'u@@nwﬁd/uﬁ?wfmu%«uéu&uud{uﬁm,tuméum@ h/ui'mwl)}’://’iﬁrt?



NIy /631

Sl

NSl

Dbl

e Gt L NIt St U S S )%uu'{% bt 2 P36 31K 2 I WAVESAPP
-@Zfz_quﬁ@uw&d&v&y;&%zuggﬁmfzﬂa /?;uuﬁ‘ué&izd

Lo u/,%}is/;@w,-ba&/,ﬁ T VA e ottt s A el !50ubtKuu,té“/“"&f%&w&uﬂm,t.ﬁu‘té&{{yﬂug,
_‘a&/U; %»@"‘atffj VS Tt P51t u;j;f/.‘i?,u@;- éa(;u

d/’);?k)/ﬁ'd/’jt:’,hr'}”
Sz K’%mf‘aér Seela o UL P b S sl eSS IS U os 5l P /"%uu,@[}w C e s NS
- L{"a’lxécuw

AL el b1
v o) u/,t/’-?;!sﬁ-gfgg.éz_/auﬁu,’v'”rt?mé_/d:’)&%&/ﬁ,uKu'%fj:u@tﬁm}gf iﬁaubtjs,»aéjg«m;wmgypu'{
—e o3 GRS T S 76 g S5

JLﬁwaaaﬁle"(

&/Jﬁ/f)wﬂg‘a8/&4:98/‘)’@652@@3,%”!ujgg/(ﬁuuanz./ﬁ@%wf OIS C S it sty £ 213
LR Had uﬁz_/.jt“/%ﬂL;/,taﬁ,/.‘;m‘;w‘fuﬁowvd ifrﬁ/f)fgf,g/séu"{mrﬁdJK/uﬂffuﬁ/Qio}bJMJG‘%
2 /u/(’séj}?ﬂur’médﬁ,@[}tgu( C i I e it e P o ol BsTL s 56 bty QB 5605 2 215
LI bl L S LK

_u:f//pwég,uw

e ble AL bl oLl e bl GBOAL b D L mrinl gt S Gl f S K et s 13
EIHE g S ot Py ft e AL AP g T e AL S s SV S L 5l sl tos S ot 30
-nggy;;lﬁ:G/ﬂM}:’?;i‘aLﬂ;)f/}fd/(gtgl:uﬁ}_bf

AL
uu:w-%u%&wéwwéfi /u/djtgE"?}E"Lc._:'}d;»wfu{/g/mwégf iﬁaub!JGJ/:,/L;Ju:Jmu}{/’w:uﬂz&%{
_u’?d)/“"gfjéu;:“;ﬂbbb’l,/M'JD'JKUZJL?UE‘{WLU{%/

S

ST AL S S b A5 Susis e JSUheaur £k T I AL GE st 215
Uil Y e AP S U e e\ bt B e et (e UL 2B e Ll P e G
Sy SAL AT Sof e PG B8 R bbbl SIS A A B et o Sed 8 e P Sl
U e ATl S e S S S 5



e HES I AL 2y

)!‘;Kjﬂﬂf/é
KR AL il o L GFE A e PP bt AL F 2023 25318 6,9805L5 K AL G 2023 2531
ey 1L 20230 Slulebass b P (e I E Bt s lon 2Entstk K10 K 713 e S frad L i p By 31

LUt

G5

e Ut SEE AT LA 1t T (DL P JE A D2 b 20282011 BI85 2 755 Thmasn s
S 2019 AU e g 6T 13858 i P M 1388 2Dast 38 K (D STt K
e b reind JA 5 e S e L S DL s sitoreind

AN

;A?utuyuf'&}»fmm&wéuﬁuiézm o ﬁf/(ﬁ@;/mfﬁ Y 2017t K 5l ST T B 25 o 5Ty
S Sl oA oA e U AES J TSt e A R S L L2 sl 3 L
Qb P stoel LT S5l Sl gt AL ufu@gjké&,wé;ﬁu:uyuguéuézf/fﬂ S sl A5 T 5T
Gt Il et

2 gl BB -

B IIN Eoni 6 S, o AT o T LA I AL 2 T o Sadeomcsiin el pe e 2
e 2T J{ﬁc{ﬂ%&“f.{!_funggv;g_édf}dﬁm,d‘q_f:q:(744_£y¢&1ﬂn,gzmwﬂn /’:i%;(a_u*f
LuuK:,L/;?:,l.#”d/»é;’f;hgGl}ﬁd;l.c;/K.Q’Jn]';:&ZKﬂ{ﬁdLJdﬁﬁfQ/&@a Jﬁ@@cﬁ,bd;hrﬁg(www.waves.net.pk)
el

e 2 ),/vfg,mé.,mbarﬂwKuh«ﬁd/fj_ué_/%u:wmfaw&@ /‘f?aggm,n il

J/‘:;‘T&)ﬁ.
A_nf’)?wrﬁémaf;m’.géﬁﬁDFK‘mu‘u*”y‘smf‘ytg‘d{ jauiﬁ/-%&j}u«d/d/ ﬂ/g,)&nu‘ﬂsms;/g‘u'{ ely2d §F 5T
e SFE I 3 OIS oy Pfleg L S TIIRE F L LI

;,Gl/“-v"i

S bt L L it P QU H S K e s B o b s i 1
Je 3/ J}ﬁ:@u&’uj’aq&}f L G B e St b ASiIE GBS Sl et FUIE s Ul ¥
L pbinlede S 1 ROy Ll LT Bt QJTJ:{@i{uayfjg?m_f;}mgﬁpw?&ﬂnu@'rw
L L el S B s AL S Gt S, P s S A At o

e o Sl L s

JV:/'%}_‘-;/{/K&



4 AN SN 21

4 E L ke P2

44258 K Ity ef 3

4 b,;'s’;?;?ﬂuwu,f,tﬂ

4,un5/rf.uﬁ)itz5

4 Mo 26

T AT

SIS Ul sy F e e S Fotnd £ eS8t G164 7154 20232 T gl Jioi

FosT
_LLJ’:’&%UKJ'(3)&;-%)}?}"&‘@57\-9JJ‘J},’LA’JL)'@L Uf.‘;f_”-.u,j/ KT8
e QeSS I8Pl (4), gé&ﬂﬁuuwéduqdm}{m;{f @t A e A3 7

LS B s

4;?;6)07‘5,&@?")3,@ 1

A HBE L It by 2
4 A st 3

e W RIS T2 s S S 2019 2 ey KT8 Vs s

L}‘&)V/}'JL}&U'
U i oLl Dot I Dsss H 3EE KDfste T A Ll e P S AN et il i
e TSI e LK e

Pl Pt A

DTl A et 1

1A b ot 2

1A ot Aotz 3

1A G a1l 4

e L5120 S A 2019 AU P ey KT B L it S i

o:?LgKrlj{&}éjf'{}ib;luc/cgd/m

Lol oyl o bt £ Uil SN AL 3 B S50 S e s 3L 2019 U P ey KOTH ) i e

LA LR g i 2 SA2 &!Ji{.éa‘.ﬂ;{&x@ﬁ#&J%fm}r.‘af WVEka birmbonfid Lo bl
J#d d%fzcba&/;uié_wéﬁg&wéu;fwugk—.uy@ t/uyj’r{fumw.u%bé-w/:-c/’df Lyl A '/'um&'/@c« e Su

«LLM.L&;/,@W‘))Q:@%&A

eI



e G It g LA G I I e SIS e e st Rk s e Sk IS IS
Ut e bt wd a L e NSt LSS A L LS T UG

AU Bl

SUL el &u,:!t{dv“;uur’c;g‘/@ﬂ Grgre U2 5L B ANy PO e B A5 5 Il 6 Gt
LFHwe Ll Js "’J,!.,@/[}yL:%J/:ﬁﬁj{u}?m|£J{J_$~fur’_9mgypy’tgdy S L bnlftule e
dostd Sy, P L;u/u‘”; el l o ke SAS FHosTl BT &,/;i-%guﬁﬂﬁés)ud/)/ﬂn ALY
ui'MGA&J{:«"J{}/@lr‘";dfl;’;;lfh"/._.é/;’:/&.UL;?IJG.Q_U}LUou'b»uﬁg?d/:‘ufdﬁ’;cw/ugzg%Jél;ut{.,zbﬂcgyaﬂg{;vﬁ&ff
g guuwfﬁ’ﬁuwéﬁﬁf Goslnldspd &0 LG P2

S AL o ey K

e PTG L Y s I A5 ey sl e 6T g sl Ll SNBSS GBI b
L Lorema i Kot buie gt LIS il Setoitie oS E iz et sl Ly b5
AL s e sl TR, e othasts 135 55T M,_‘ad/,/m}@/};&wégugx»q}&‘uéuﬂ,&mm@mgmwﬁ U
e A s S 1 e TS Y e UL 228 2019 A e TS )

B

STy L fre eSS e

LS S Uk A G Sl B L U ez o S e bl Qo S 3L 1S (L)
‘efJJ%»ﬁun(yc@Pc—J/’uﬁ{ («

e U b T ety i1t S ot B (c

g eE L Lo (d

e FEBsaUt S St dlea trnd It UL S Lo d FRS SIAS) 5 S 1 B sk i (e

-‘L&fd/ SISt S Ve 8PS b i e Ay Sl (f
/;lf+ufﬂu‘&é&;ﬁﬂ#d/é/d&{méﬁﬁdﬂeJJ{ (g

cEon St e N1 e (Tl e JEE R S i et U AGAS e U A L S ey K (n

ok (o

" I S st 6T " Lo Sl 122019 AU et TN e G p Py g L3 P
<LLJ‘:ZJIZJ)’&JD;?J{4—//2;TLU:J/KJ>:LL

U&’f;/)'ufﬁ'ﬂ'u'/uédt/&

S E e PR S PG AT St B P LB S W L3 5 Tisun e

ST

VeGSR A



%}UQJ}‘G@?:;«W

LL&Jo://lgK@Wdﬁd}’h&)ﬁ.méuﬂg}aﬁ:grf{“iéilé"cé‘f__)}‘9/5'()&5)(&%7‘/5"&,4?(}]11.9K/l,u%}?’f‘ag/??/ol,u'd{
(Cwe Lk S bbdmll  f e bl oitbe b5 o QI Pl S o p i oy TSk S e
e Pz

JLJ{ uﬁ”u:/,ﬁ K{u}” DL e Iy L/g_ﬂ,é /':,».fl“h.@-bamr_ﬂ,é hitb e U AEIL K_uéfiug Lu'%{
- &’u’w!d'/J¢WLJJ:;}>$~JMJ/JJ{%~&;&@ LI 6 ._,é“j/ig.‘»ff:
.:367/3':,5‘?:,.[}}7&

LI A F e o\ il gy G ot b (g g L TP e A I b s ey
f:j‘);k:)"&;ij;%Ju;CK'%id?BMJ.nL//%LE{__ /g_ﬁ;/ug/b.»}/}|ﬂ/3gfk%'gagfjfg’;ﬁ@ ol S £
UlgunE Ul e sl i ur&&{ung_dm,sgf G =5 b e sl gt o u P\ BF KL S (et

ISP L blor gt LAgSOPs L2 T kil soc St el P Gz s S £ 0 oot
g/

(CSRIY/rifbric sy 6

A b L N BSAEE S 3E e b1 SN sl T e Ll A L e sl 2 U S e
(el N G331, Lee i 6T Uil f K228 7o P e WU D 5L Ll s S g2 S
ceen P SIAL Ly ol S

e Gomig AL St N et S Ve kB mn ey St FA G SK G QP S L3k S Bk

e Iy e a3 AU BCSRe ekl e Ut P g Ve HICSRE L 2 WAVES

=#1_{2_GENDER

Q€ b3t A AL urauwgryg.&‘_/ﬂ},wrKﬁ.ugé/ufe{mwuwg_éufﬂu:ﬁ@ sy
<‘J3Lt€i£(ﬂ/'5urut,{£

CleSiboa Predi et g sz sbs HP s Foc el it 210 L U s pl NSt 30 S b e
AT e Fsnd LE5F e (L550 L P SR s i St St P fd
e dnb L S8

e LI FE DR L ni w2024 253105

Sl LU
-Léo/;/J&LuJ_/J‘uL}yK&!uf:ug“é/ﬂ{z“_;cf!m!o/wuﬁ’u,u’_&?u}@!/Lﬂé’q%ufﬂqchﬂuﬁﬁjg/Kjg,

el
s %L&:bﬂuﬁ{{-ujZ;./ulﬁ/cj.éz"_)(iy/./:|%}:3/IUHWQ%JJXL«3&U'*?J.%ﬁ.gﬁt"ﬂ:—.,-/l.’gb(u;@'%'u"{
et QU b i e S s I 3 A S e S 36 S 4 S & e Y7 £ b A6t Mf_wgm/w

J}dl%; 'é



&/{J&}g//'f&

GOt/ T3.1

SISTAL e G Bl S e 0§ (G Ly 2ot Fagsdet o Py g LIl 20245310
LA o8 P By o B e Frine P B\ e ks S HLWAVES e p s L St SEST g g sl
<4LC'—.75J|’7G/L’Z£—

‘Jw,/@,wzjfﬁ’;ga_ Gy P e i ez ST e S 3 AU b s et v b
B LRE Al S ie P 2 AL L2 Qs L QWS e i ol SO0 ity
-gytég/ug/;/é"wtuﬁiﬂu’_/uﬁ{aur’/wi:du

St Bt TGP e §TS s st st Jo AL S S b e SSo 0 S 013 I3
fﬁgdx/@}&w-gde}f‘ufouf/.m:d/ Kdl./pg/f&n&”"/.ul’bxb‘uc}c«JJ,{}LMd/u’?:‘aixbx}“,;ﬁ&%-gp/(@;’tﬁ& &y
SEeGEIZ L Uskl /z‘ugz.n(@usé,by/J/,u‘+Jz4_»,3§LJ it B e fur ST 2SIt P sl = L)
g/

Jﬁ.,é*jﬂw“véu&uujug‘a&nc,uﬁd/’g/d%,t/ﬂwtu;funu@ﬂ@}m&:"“;?g/uggf,&/@;ggd/oﬁ&f{&:’uﬁfd/w/@uﬁ&}
bt S Tk SeEL 3 ANAVES £S5 2 I TRI o KL S L3S ETAR3 AL ks e Gt SFG 0
- 51/6:(/.??4 Yy

20t P800 LG by A b e P U BISAPUE G U £ ot S S K T e st (03 Ay
(SGP)).:.QJ%/’Q/L&{ Cola -Coca-ut & /& u,/ﬁ,‘jwu?&wgvéde;}mw,w]ugg&wuwm{,@frKugvég,wf
fuifﬂnfigﬁ@digL“lgtgég_iéyl}/./oU@ﬁ{@ﬂ@ﬂélJﬂ/Waves Home Appliances :4/?£}Q/§./qfﬁfuf/vgﬁi

e L& SN S R E IS ISP L WA G SN AL L S L e s eriyie

J&!}UL L}J)J«j:-‘a %:ffﬂld/éjug/ Laup/uf u}wﬂ/}/»&@'m'c/wé'/a V}"”J(D...@C;i‘a V/?{J}J«jﬁ/@?vgﬂ&ﬁwﬁ
b S BE ELbebr Sotr NI AL AR5 TIE S e Cl g b e 1 OB s e b/ St
- uﬁﬁ/gdflg_i

Lﬁ/VJi'/J/‘.z&{&ﬁ/@Gd_u’?"é,)culaid/d_ﬂd}’yczi_)} f*‘m’bfi@/@fﬁvgd/uf/ LJU:JLL"J:/UT}&/C?IJL’?'/d"“;l.&'ﬂiz}:’ﬂdfd
bty Ut e e S dEFU e fom 3ol ool 1o bt SO f B A A il et

-
¢



&/{/uﬁ//i?'

e U 8 el S Sy Ko et oy s D S Y 2024 531 A ALE e
L55L it Gt G 38 ah U123 G b S S I e G 3 B U S 1§ ATy
;lﬂu?uygu:&wﬂawéﬁ?;w;mr}f{ b I A bt e O d&Jg’.wng[.mwu%gﬁJ DY

-ugz_U&,;Jﬁ‘uﬁﬁéyw&u:;gwwﬁwd@f%ﬂﬁ

UAEILL L Uik Ssmd & o st Wosones i ades Gip z_ﬁ‘duuu<+y@%ﬁ,um;u,a A L ey
—e 2 S PR S P AL e on PSS HE S PWAVES -t JES, P V1B Gt P S foil

LGS S S per Ol i SSt SE S 1 Ta e i S S e S QY2024
-d/u, d;» VA NIT KJ@/&?}LMZ_/J&“

U0t e Wt 6B U G st S 2 el e 2363 U QUL WAVES 023l £ P WIS L 2
<£Q/éw/dzhcﬁﬁlzfc;u%/ﬂg'féﬁ:'ujL&)ng&“/{.’/K@/h

L LS e LY WAVESJL&,JULKungt/.gfaugufwg.ég;g/,'u’?c,fw/wuz/wVJU'/,)’A,J‘L/%U:
-~ udﬂ/}cj.ééj.'byz

T



u%j@dnj&&,;,,gy,é

BRI A 3Ll Sl i 2024 £531-8 2F T2

ek Q}dé/&%’fb&@gj@..ﬁ@k'/ug%‘f..{;uljﬂnuﬁgﬁUUlJ'Jij/}LJ{

. A enys_a

Jd A b

L Mur iR gk igs-c

BOESE AN BT et 7 I d

Surddu ot el k=il o N y'l/’é/g e Fe S d{q)g/ﬂr%w: U Askelnd gl
Sl AL LIPS FE T B S S F T L AL L AL YR30 bl
QWb STE e dnd s Y 2024 2531 AR WAL Ui e bW £ e L L0155
e SEF RS E L i Lt e ST 6L izt Seps ot AL gy AL std
e FG A PIL Ut DS Bt Gt s B P b P S L A6
b PG Sl S 20255531545 24 T2

éw‘}Gﬂru:w/(u&gwﬁéut’gf“/fy‘r;é/g de%‘}uLu,%/'ﬁwuméJva;nﬂ 2025 531
JHLc}uu;4ﬁu/JJ[_%T_%JmK/:d/PJJ[;STJM.4&q;ufrﬁzféivéu;%}wﬁalﬂ“&:mfuﬁ
g L e JE 6L 2 Ut JCeps ot A AL s K LSt VLM ST
e bbb s P b P L AL P FE o B E L

LLILi w2025 53105 STm L F ot Qo lire e i L st OB A6
ISR G L e - o e s R AL U f3e i ST
IR 362 Ut Z AUt Ui Jae S0 A1 8K U L5 Tl S L st At !
‘anJfﬁ}f//Uf}}J

shEHm

LL e 2 re e AL SN A s 6t Fp o L AIBL G P SN AL G
NEETT @ﬁuﬁ)w/,r&?;f;'smg;{mf S It IR St S i IS A st F
oI Ul e et s F o S50 ol e s ol uﬂngué}w/,lﬁ@%/;;rl;y
~+G¢ letffvf”}

=6l

LUt Tt L Gk 3 Q5610 AOAIMOAU e b e L9155
z’.fﬁJouﬁ?u}uﬂ'fcJ)&nufwfégmwf"(g_Jm)u?}Julijuﬂ)ﬁw/,’fﬂnﬁéj}fjtséd{um
S b Fo AL L eldo St S e MUK IE J fem et Sozin p L 7
S L I oo ibe Bt e Ut T 2l e S peters e tyst
62 bW Eo_sbr, www.waves.net .pk_%v%;d/&{ult:/g/

sy

e AL I Sz b Sy

ek Sy

e AL I Stk Sy



PG SEFE L2 L S o arbiSian sy e eas S L £ e I P L Sl 9
_GESGering WL Y 2 E ST ﬁ;&dﬁ;ﬂnﬁ.@té[ﬂ)
uﬁasjldﬁ;uﬁ?ﬁ/"bigﬁ{fﬂigvfun.,k}*:/?www.waves.net.pk&lxu,f.!JG;‘/c_r’ty/uj/z/}k»%{"viuu%@yhai.%l’;ﬂl/ 10
UL Lk

KA LA (e 1) BT A e tbpu e (AL S A b e o S 7 A1
St AL Pkt E e it i

SIS e S PSS s L S L S 5 st SRS 6L 1275 201717 12
e §zp SarttnS L S T EH A RAL 3G obie e WL LK1 ZE 0L ea e st e 3
UE K G Lol P2 e Bt K P S S P P S pie 0B U e S 6P L b S
e e QUTL Lty Portessn Ui IS ey S

Ut b, L AL e KL A e 5L 3106872024561 00 517913 13

COr IS S

ity LAGM AL SQRAA o L5 Sitdeny satlaslie st A AU L L gt e tlos
-f;/(ﬂ/’;,a»mzi“ﬁ.,gziLnJﬂr;/@;uiu{"%)'yjéuu‘ugﬁKL;J;/g/;uvg.iuv‘&uufgfu’f‘;@%{ﬂv.ung;f

e Ui TS TG PGS s A L St Ut 3185 7L 201726172 14
/lgb/?akbar@corplink.com.pk gﬁdla/w/}:ﬁé&?@/mcs@waves.net.pk J’d’c&@ﬂnﬁéiohk’/wuﬁ/d’rff 15
;-2



:“LL f@cxff{l{l .b

W arsiret S oL e TSP s S G Ut 561 s S Posb s e 561 st e 31 b
LGS AL e

L Uty b3 ONICH L PL 35 sy 65l i

LS G SBAL 6T U6 4TS WONICL S sl £

b S FUCNICHgend B s iv

G/l g&ﬁt}%,u@e)?LLggj}jvéptsu”r{fd‘.f}fwiﬁséw;@wumg s A3 ST e s S Mol g 6 v

S P e G un 2l e Qe bertPne i 4

K3 FE s U JN K55 5

e Ut b s AL UL A ke 2018 25 (e Pl e b Wt AL A KLl S At AGM
:fg_/ﬁl/'g,ugéus@/;“AL._ﬁ”fu:(u@.l&%{[j,u:»éJl,fn_w'tglJL/JW&’@»&UVLM%J

Ky PR B!

Foon B LMK 2024t 112308 2l AL FE NN L LS AL AL F L L S St ) a
-Ul;é_/ﬂl/'u';/E-Voting 2,3L Corplink (Private) Limited ‘jg??:gﬁ/,ﬁlgﬁd!/}/

S oS 5L 4 L iz 61132 S b 62 2 3L $) b

(-4 £ 05:000 5/ 2025 4129 Fus_ FZ_05:00 62025 f 4129 /53 fm £.9.00G 20250} £127L i s T
S e s S S f e it 3ot e SRS

K6 a5l o

oo §F me AL S pekd Lo §oli g€ /@8 eng 5L ok iy pdG o a
-cL_.,?:“iLHumf{(www.waves.net.pk)

JOKM-9GE T s L LBt Ll B oot e B P EAL SKS(CNIOSK GG 3125 et
é&.ﬁu%ﬂu!;é_nd;‘rwiﬁ;u’-g/ﬁdlgcs@waves.net.pk%u)uﬁ;l[Lu@d}’.g;/JLJﬁ/?(gﬁi/?d}gbp)mMu
~ Al flm U ONIC B, ek Kbl U

e Sn Sk oSl 2018 (L ) e bSO L UL 144,51435L 21 6
e (PIUBICNICE (e o2 S ) e bl s QoS st L GEebrp L ot B 22 5 By ds T
UL S cs@waves.net.pk il S e ouiln e sy S STl (3602 G sy s AL J¥ers [
ML L aole s St psesei 15520256 WAVES & 5 48551 5631 Z il b AL Register AGL- L w20 A511)
e S P L S e

0% I Byt e UAF L e u A Gk S G UHAL U S oA S Sl By s
Uty QU R R e IS S e S By A $) i sl e
;uy/Lué/fﬂn}-fug;LwUO%Jnyb;/{f@»JQV?JCWLfLUu@M‘&WLZO146/” 2151025 L U1 8
e S P s U DOT e B S et (e DOT L L& St B 3L Py e B P e Snti
-Jr/c’zuz’/g‘f'fjﬁé&{égu;(pLz)O?ﬁ}!ﬁ/:_fy/L“J..@‘:Jﬂ/;lq//:;(j”;'g/p(/@'/.ruf&‘gﬂ-+LJ;”LQ?JJ&KJC/J’JfJ'



J?yg'ﬁu{/ Kgs
(tpqu.auuucuu

£:2025f 13004352 629001 BBt et 30 0 E O 322, L b e Ky K T b U5 U
b G A I 36E12:0020

sl $ef

ST BEAL AL FE L2024 29 -1

S Pt b P o Lt S S E A oL F L 20244531 -2

Lué.n;u,/z_u”’ﬁimm-L'/u:;(ymyéufﬂuﬁe{ui/asf&i@&%@@vﬁawsﬁés1 -3
_‘;JJJQJJL/C}’Q;%’&/‘&,}TL&CCJuiKlﬁfzgrdvfb;lul,@j/&/ﬁfT
mlu"r‘;

LB AL oot Ui 355 L 5t IV s Finid -4
A 2 (e £1)5 st b oyl e s 2 A ey s 202475310 dle b # W3
30L A Qe Qe L FL LIl 72024531 Soepp AL L AL e fa sty [55S]
e CbSEIFE I Ut e I

FEIV e KL LB 30 bl s S und 2025531 QLA BITARE AP -5
6 LU B i S L gL P AGM E sl e St

s #2025} £108
(LB G5 21

e WAL Pt Pk T Bl
:‘j]

L2 e (UL K 20280 1238tk (e i) oF 20250f 1130 = 20250 2124 S E S ATSE

WD Laol oL S st L st USSR G TR (1)
TSP P L sl el Sl Bre SR i § SN € s emn S b e 2
SAbf I b s www waves et pk (Pt boss S 6 bW UL Tin L Pl 5548 (e il il e

TN

e Pk faed i ipn2 3 te

:g_t,@uﬁuf/u/d&‘cf:%i{u@;aﬁéuw’ (120008,5226 S Lus ¥t /e s 040 561CDC.3

L LStk a
a&ﬁu:_ﬁgwéffyg&w&wﬁoMJﬁﬁ/Jumwu:;;sthjfyé’/g%@%ﬁ,g/Auﬂn..ufdeg/ﬂnam;u:é_v&’/'li
LSS s G e L P UCNIO K S Fi AUl Pl vl

_Gelf g&ﬂ/’%,f,».)?nggfjﬁjvéﬁé'gféﬁ/w&m/,um JEAMBITAE B em S ey Ki



WAVES CORPORATION LIMITED
BALLOT PAPER FOR VOTING THROUGH POST

For poll at the Annual General Meeting of Waves Corporation Limited (WAVES or the Company) to be held on
Wednesday, 30 April 2025 at 12:00 p.m. at the Registered Office of the Company.

The designated email address for the Chairman at which the duly filled in ballot paper can be sent at
cs@waves.net.pk

Name of shareholder/joint shareholders

Registered Address

Folio No. / CDC Participant / Investor ID with sub-account No

Number of shares held (shall be taken as of book closure in notice)

CNIC, NICOP/Passport No. (for foreigner) (Copy to be attached)

Additional Information ((In case of representative of body corporate, corporation and
Federal Government.)

Name of Authorized Signatory:

CNIC, NICOP/Passport No. (In case of foreigner) of Authorized Signatory - (Copy to be
attached)

Special Business: Resolution 4

I/we hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following resolutions through postal ballot by conveying my/our
assent or dissent to the following resolution by placing tick (,/) mark in the relevant box below or may write “Approve”
or “Disapprove”

“Resolved that the transactions carried out by the Company with Waves Corporation Limited, Waves Marketplace
Limited, Waves Builders and Developers (Private) Limited and Employees’ Pension/Gratuity/Provident Fund (as the
case may be), during the financial year 31 December 2024 as given in the related party note of the Annual Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024, be and hereby are ratified and
approved.”

No. Resolution Information I/We approve Resolution I/We disapprove the
Resolution

1 Special Business: Resolution 4 For: Against:

Special Business: Resolution 5

I/we hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following resolutions through postal ballot by conveying my/our
assent or dissent to the following resolution by placing tick (,/) mark in the relevant box below or may write “Approve”
or “Disapprove”

“Resolved further that the Board of Directors of the Company is authorized to approve all related party transactions
to be carried out on case-to-case basis during the financial year 31 December 2025. These transactions shall be
deemed to be approved by the shareholders and shall be placed before the shareholders in the next AGM for their
formal ratification/approval”

No. Resolution Information I/We approve Resolution I/We disapprove the
Resolution

1 | Special Business: Resolution 5 For: Against:

Signature of Shareholder
Number of Shares Held
Place and Date

Notes:

1. Dully filled postal ballot should be sent to Chairman of the Company, at 9-KM, Multan Road, Lahore (Waves
Factory Office) along with the copy of CNIC, NICOP/Passport (for foreigner). The form should reach 48 hours
before the meeting. The Signature on the postal ballot should match with the signatures on the CNIC,
NICOP/Passport.

2. Incomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, torn, mutilated, overwritten, expired identification copy shall be
rejected.



WAVES CORPORATION LIMITED
FORM OF PROXY

The Company Secretary
Waves Corporation Limitrd
9 KM, Multan Road, Lahore

I/ We
of
being a member of Waves Corporation Limited hereby appoint

of

or failing him
of

as my proxy in my absence to attend, speak and vote for me on my behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held on Wednesday, 30 April 2025 at 12:00 p.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my / our hand this day of
Rs. 50/-
) Revenue
Witness No.1 Stamp
Name :
Address :
CNIC No.:
Signature of Member(s)
Witness No. 2
Name :
Address :
CNIC No.:
(Name in Block letters)
Folio No.
Participant ID No.
No. of shares
Account No. in CDC
Important
1. CDC Account Holders are requested to strictly follow the guidelines mentioned in the Notice of Meeting.
2. A Member entitled to attend a General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of
him/her.
3. Members are requested:
(@)  To affix Revenue Stamp of Rs. 50/- at the place indicated above.
(b)  Tosignacrossthe Revenue Stamp in the same style of signature as is registered with the Company.
(c) To write down their Folio Numbers.
4. This form of proxy, duly completed and signed across a Rs. 50/- revenue stamp, must be deposited/sent at the

Company's Registered Office not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or may be sent
through the email as given in this notice followed by courier/post to the Company's registered office.
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WAVES CORPORATION LIMITED

9-KM, MULTAN ROAD

LAHORE

Ph: 042-35415421-5

UAN: +92(42)111-31-32-33

Email: cs@waves.net.pk | www.waves.net.pk
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